DUDLEY-CHARLTON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Meeting of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School Committee

Wednesday, October 13, 2021 at 7:00 PM
Shepherd Hill Regional High School
68 Dudley-Oxford Road
Dudley, MA 01571

I.
II.
III.
IV.

Call to Order

AGENDA

P. Aucoin called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM

Pledge of Allegiance
Moment of Silence
Approval of Minutes

A. Minutes of Regular Meeting of Wednesday, September 22, 2021
B. Minutes of Executive Session of Wednesday, September 22, 2021
Approval of minutes has been tabled by the Chair until the next meeting

IV.

Approval of the Warrant

The warrants continue to be signed electronically as well as in person. The warrants were distributed among the
members without comment or questions.

Accounts Payable
Warrant #
Amount
24
$46,905.59
25
$13,757.66
26
$521,116.81
27
$629,813.41
28
$1,864.35
29
$81.50
30
$287,607.81
Total
$1,501,147.13

V.

Citizens’ Forum

Timothy Paquette – Dudley
Mr. Paquette stated that he opposes CRT, CSE, forced masking and mandatory injections. He does, however, support
term limits for the School Committee
Mr. Paquette also cited a twitter post by one of the principals on the district webpage that he disagreed with.
P. Aucoin notified Mr. Paquette that our policies do not allow anyone to site personality [personnel] matters without it
first being approved for discussion by the committee.
A motion for recess was called for by C. Carmignini, seconded by J. Evans to recess for 5 minutes after Mr. Paquette
disregarded the school committee policies by continuously connecting his comments to personnel. The motion was
passed unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes
Mr. Paquette would like to know the policy and remedy for employees of the district in positions of power who post
political views on social media. Chair Aucoin referred Mr. Paquette to the Superintendent.

Jaimie Pablico – Dudley
Ms. Pablico had a number of questions for the committee. J. Terry requested that Ms. Pablico email her questions to the
committee for a response and so everything was understood.
● Do students need to be citizens of Massachusetts, and either a Dudley or Charlton resident?
● Did you put a motion on the floor on April 29th, 2020 to approve Mr. Lamarche's request to allow his children to
be enrolled in this district despite their Connecticut residency?
● Mr. Laferriere, did you second this motion?
● Did you recently attend a Charlton town meeting seeking an override to balance this district's budget?
● Did this district receive in ESSER 1 and ESSER 2, and an estimate of ESSER, 2020-present, an approximate 2 billion
dollars?
● Did this district also receive additional grant monies to include a GEERF?
● If this district is receiving all of these funds from the state via the federal government and taxpayers unto this
district, why is this district unable to balance a budget, and yet Mr. Lamarche seeks more money through an
override?
● Do you have an accounting sheet of all of this money coming in, and what it is used for?
Shauna Piehl – Charlton
Shauna requests that the committee continue holding meetings with the parents and the board of health to make a
sound decision on what’s best for our children in regards to current and future mandates.
Carla Coan – Charlton
Ms. Coan would like the location of the committee meetings to be changed to a non-school site so that, instead of
enforcing masks, it is up to the individual to choose whether or not to wear one during meetings.
Marsha Wagner – Dudley
Ms. Wagner states that the policies in place feel stifling due to their limitations and feels that the public should have a say
in policy procedures.

VI.

Communications

S. Lamarche confirmed that the letter the committee sent to Commissioner Riley was mailed last week (October 6). We
have not yet received a response, but neither has Sandwich, MA.
The district received a letter from the Massachusetts Nurses Association requesting an increase in nursing staff to help
with COVID and the physical, social and emotional needs of our district children/students.
J. Terry would like to praise the district for bringing back after-school activities and the efforts that went into bringing the
programs back this year.
P. Aucoin received a note from Sandra Sullivan to say thank you for her time with the district.

VII.

Student Representative Report – Mr. Trevor Wallace

VIII.

Superintendent’s Report

IX.

New Business

We are approaching homecoming weekend (October 15-16). It will start with a dance in the SHRHS parking lot, followed
by Saturday’s homecoming day celebration and evening football game.
The cafeteria has returned to lunch tables but is requiring students sign into their tables for contact tracing if needed.
Seventh period will be unlocked and students will be returning to a regular schedule.
The National Honors Society Haunting on the Hill will take place October 29 at 6:00 PM with proceeds going toward the
Thanksgiving Food Drive

September 29 was a successful in person dinner for First Honors night.
Four SHRHS commended for outstanding performance for preliminary SAT/National Scholarship Qualifying Test
Charlton PTO held three social events to support children
Educator Evaluation systems are re-engaged this year.
Outreach email sent to DCRSD families about unknown positive individuals and close contact individuals
Policy Subcommittee has a new feedback loop where policies are sent out to families after first read through the DCRSD
communication for review.

A. Appointment of School Committee Secretary and Records Access Officer

A motion by C. Carmignini, second by J. Evans to appoint Erin Glenn as School Committee Secretary was
approved unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes
A motion by C. Carmignini, second by C. Kabala to appoint Erin Glenn as Records Access Officer was approved
unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes

B. Report of the Director of Finance and Operations and the Budget and Finance Subcommittee – Dir.
Mathieu and Chair Laferriere
1. Year End Audit June 2020 – Mr. Frank Serretti – Powers and Sullivan

The audit was conducted remotely. The audit was delayed, but preliminary work was able to be
completed, including necessary testing. The year-end work happened between March-July 2021
and the Final report was issued in August 2021. The records were in excellent shape and no
recommendations for corrections was required as a result of the audit.

A motion by C. Kabala, second by J. Terry to send a letter to the business department to say
thank you for all their hard work was approved unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes

2. Donations

Shepherd Hill received two donations for their Athletic Donation Account from the Blue-Collar
Football Clinic and the Dale Smith Golf Fund.
Heritage received a donation from the Masonic Angels at the Overlook to help sponsor students
in the “After the Bell” program.

A motion by J. Terry, second by C Kabala to accept all donations passed unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes

3. Medicare Plan Renewal

The plan renews on January 1, 2022. The rates for the plan for next year is an increase cap of
$15.00 to $286,68 but is actually still down from the 2019 cost of $309.07. This rate has been
guaranteed for 2023 and capped at a max $10.00 increase per year for 2024 and 2025. The max
2025 will still be less than 2019.

4. Update Life Insurance Carrier

Due to a hole in the communication system with our carrier, we will no longer be using Boston

Mutual, but we were able to get the same coverage through Symetra at the same rate. Boston
Mutual claimed a 136% loss and would not negotiate the loss warranting the change in carriers.
The switch from providers will be effective January 2022.
A motion by C. Kabala, second by C. Carmignani to approve the change of the district’s
insurance carrier from Boston Mutual to Symetra passed unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes

5. Update General Ledger Software

Formal training on the new Infinite Visions software will begin near the end of October with a
projected July 1 implementation.

6. Update Food Services – Dir. Greenberg

Due to supply chain issues, there are new challenges for Food Services such as shortages of food
and packaging materials, as well as delays or cancellations in deliveries in addition to a shortage
of workers. Food services will continue to do their best to stick with a daily menu, but lastminute changes might need to be made based on what each delivery looks like.

C. Report of the Assistant Superintendent – Dr. Ackerman
1. Professional Development

A half day of professional development was offered October 8, 2021 and allowed teachers and
staff the opportunity to review skills, standards and goals for students now we are approximately
five weeks into the instructional period. Based on concerning feedback from grade 2 teachers, Dr.
Ackerman is working with principals, Amplify and DCRSD educators to address questions and
concerns.

2. Middle School Mathematics – Principal Starczewski

The district will be reviewing the mathematics curriculum for grades 5-8 to provide students with
an increased and enriched learning experience. We have partnered with DESE and other likedistricts to identify HQIM – High Quality Instructional Materials in mathematics. HQIM
materials are research-based materials that meet standards and expectations in our state and
through peer review processes. The next meeting will be October 26, 2021.

D. Report of the Capital Outlay/Safety Subcommittee – Chair Terry

The Subcommittee met September 24 virtually to outline future needs and safety concerns. The top priorities
are currently the roofs at both middle schools and the bleachers at SHRHS.

E. MASC Report of the Resolutions Committee

Motion by K. Laferriere, second by C. Kabala for J. Costello to be the Delegate for the district at the MASC
conference passed unanimously.

P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes
Resolution 1 – MASC supports proposals that would establish dedicated funding for school-based physical
health and mental health clinics and services thus creating an optimal learning environment and setting up
students for future excellent health standards.
A motion by C. Kabala, second by J. Terry to agree with resolution 1 was passed unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes

C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes
Resolution 2 – MASC will file for and support legislation which seeks to provide free broadband internet to all
K-12 students.
A Motion by K. Laferriere, second by J. Evans to agree with resolution 2 was passed unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes
Resolution 3 – MASC requests the Congressional Delegation reintroduce and promote the passage of the
IDEA Full Funding Act
A Motion by J. Costello, second by K. Laferriere to agree with resolution 2 was passed unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes
Resolution 4 – MASC calls for at least 20 minutes of free-play recess per day which cannot be excluded from
structured learning time requirements and may not increase the total number of hours required in the school
year.
A motion by J. Terry, second by J. Evans to agree with resolution 4 was passed unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes
Resolution 5 – MASC requests Legislation encourage the use of restorative, therapeutic and educational
approaches to incidents whenever possible over the use of “zero-tolerance” policies in order to provide
students the best chance to remain in the public-school system.
A motion by J. Evans, second by J. Costello to agree with resolution 5 was passed unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes

Resolution 6 – MASC requests the legislature establish a commission to research and analyze alternative
means for students to demonstrate academic achievement for graduation requirements.
A motion by J. Evans, second by J. Costello to agree with resolution 6 was passed unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes
Resolution 7 – MASC seeks to preserve the authority of the elected body by removing “and school
committee” from MCL Ch. 69, Sec. 1K and replacing it with “Nothing in this section shall permit the Board of
Elementary and Secondary Education or the Commissioner to remove the authority of the school
committee.”
A motion by K. Laferriere, second by J. Costello to agree with resolution 7 was passed unanimously.
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes
Resolution 8 – MASC petition Congress to appropriate $30 billion to improving electrical supply
infrastructure, and providing electric buses and charging stations
A motion by K. Laferriere, second by J. Costello to agree with resolution 8 was defeated. Motion did not pass.
P Aucoin - No
C Carmignani – Abstained
J Costello – No
J Evans – No
C Kabala – No
K Laferriere – No
J Terry – No
J. Terry stated that she does not feel now is the right time to entertain this motion due to driver shortages
and the nation's debt. Simply not taking action doesn’t send a strong enough message, so it should be voted
down.
Resolution 9 – MASC supports regulations prohibiting public schools from using anything that refers to, or is
associated with, Native Americans.
A motion by C. Carmignini, second by J. Evans to agree with resolution 9 was defeated 2-5. Motion did not
pass.
P Aucoin - No
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – No
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – No
K Laferriere – No
J Terry – No

F. Update Superintendent’s Self Evaluation

Mr. Lamarche used a standard rubric for his self-evaluation and identified 10 out of 42 areas that need

improvement.
K. Laferriere requests the committee add a time to the agenda to discuss goals and long-term vision of the
school committee for the district and the Superintendent

X.

Next Meeting Dates

XI.

Future Agenda Items: Superintendent Goals (October 27), DCRSD Strategic Plan Progress Report (November), Update
SHRHS Global Studies Trip (October/November), DCLC (December), Superintendent/SHRHS Principal Awards (December),
Student Achievement Report (January), 2022-2023 SY Calendar (February)

School Committee Meeting: Wednesday, October 27, 2021, 7:00 PM Charlton Middle School
Budget and Finance Subcommittee: Wednesday, October 20, 2021, 3:00 PM - Video Conference
Policy Review Subcommittee: Thursday, October 14, 2021, 9:00 AM - Video Conference
Curriculum Subcommittee for Teaching and Learning: Monday, October 25, 2021, 3:00 PM - Video Conference
Capital Outlay/Safety Subcommittee: Friday, October 22, 2021, 11:00 AM - Video Conference

The committee requests that we add the following items to future agendas:
Executive Session to continue discussion contract negotiations for the Superintendent
Update on SEPAC
XII.

Executive Session: To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining [Dudley-Charlton Paraprofessionals

Association] if an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the public body and the chair
so declares.

Per the chair, there will be no executive session this evening.

XIII.

Adjourn

A motion by J. Terry, second by K. Laferriere to adjourn the meeting was approved unanimously by a roll call vote at 9:15
PM
P Aucoin - Yes
C Carmignani – Yes
J Costello – Yes
J Evans – Yes
C Kabala – Yes
K Laferriere – Yes
J Terry – Yes

The items listed, which may be discussed at the meeting, are those reasonably anticipated by the chair. Not all items listed may
in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. The School
Committee may vote on all items listed on this agenda
“…to advance the knowledge and well-being of our children and our community.”

DUDLEY-CHARLTON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
Meeting of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School Committee

Wednesday, October 13, 2021 at 7:00 PM
Shepherd Hill Regional High School
68 Dudley-Oxford Road
Dudley, MA 01571
AGENDA

I.
II.
III.
IV.

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Moment of Silence
Approval of Minutes

V.
VI.
VII.
VIII.
IX.
X

Approval of the Warrant
Citizens’ Forum
Communications
Student Representative Report – Mr. Trevor Wallace
Superintendent’s Report
New Business
A. Appointment of School Committee Secretary and Records Access Officer
B. Report of the Director of Finance and Operations and the Budget and Finance Subcommittee – Dir.
Mathieu and Chair Laferriere
1. Year End Audit June 2020 – Mr. Frank Serretti – Powers and Sullivan
2. Donations
3. Medicare Plan Renewal
4. Update Life Insurance Carrier
5. Update General Ledger Software
6. Update Food Services – Dir. Greenberg
C. Report of the Assistant Superintendent – Dr. Ackerman
1. Professional Development
2. Middle School Mathematics – Principal Starczewski
D. Report of the Capital Outlay/Safety Subcommittee – Chair Terry
E. MASC Report of the Resolutions Committee
F. Update Superintendent’s Self Evaluation

XI.

Next Meeting Dates

XII.

Future Agenda Items: Superintendent Goals (October 27), DCRSD Strategic Plan Progress Report (November), Update

A. Minutes of Regular Meeting of Wednesday, September 22, 2021
B. Minutes of Executive Session of Wednesday, September 22, 2021

School Committee Meeting: Wednesday, October 27, 2021 , 7:00 PM Charlton Middle School
Budget and Finance Subcommittee: Wednesday, October 20, 2021, 3:00 PM - Video Conference
Policy Review Subcommittee: Thursday, October 14, 2021, 9:00 AM - Video Conference
Curriculum Subcommittee for Teaching and Learning: Monday, October 25, 2021, 3:00 PM - Video Conference
Capital Outlay/Safety Subcommittee: Friday, October 22, 2021, 11:00 AM - Video Conference

SHRHS Global Studies Trip (October/November), DCLC (December), Superintendent/SHRHS Principal Awards (December),
Student Achievement Report (January), 2022-2023 SY Calendar (February)

XIII.

Executive Session: To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining [Dudley-Charlton Paraprofessionals

XIV.

Adjourn

Association] if an open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining position of the public body and the chair
so declares.

The items listed, which may be discussed at the meeting, are those reasonably anticipated by the chair. Not all items listed may
in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. The School
Committee may vote on all items listed on this agenda
“…to advance the knowledge and well-being of our children and our community.”

DUDLEY-CHARLTON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
School Committee Agenda Items
10.13.2021
As you heard this evening, the First Honors in-person dinner was a success. We are excited to
build back evenings that celebrate who we are and as Principal Chaplin shared that evening, we
need to celebrate our academic scholars. I thought guest speaker and SHRHS alum Major
Chelsea Scott was excellent in message and relatability.
_______________________________________________________________
We have four SHRHS students who have been commended for their outstanding performance
on the Preliminary SAT/National Scholarship Qualifying Test in 2020. Gabe Roach, Bronson
Dubey, Abigail Lepper and Trevor Wallace.
_______________________________________________________________
I want to complement the Charlton PTO for holding three great social events at CES, HES and
CMS. I was only able to make one event, but a huge thank you to the Charlton PTO Board and
President Michele Gaudreau for supporting all children through these fun events.
______________________________________________________________
As you have seen, and you will see this reflected in my updated self-evaluation document,
educator evaluation systems are reengaged this school year. While everyone is responsible for
all aspects of their evaluation systems, for teachers we identified areas considered “look fors”
within standards and indicators to collectively develop a better understanding of effective
practices and identify credible approaches to support teachers. The Standards and Indicators
are as follows.
Standard I - Curriculum, Planning, and Assessment
I-A. Curriculum and Planning - 1. Subject Matter Knowledge
Standard II - Teaching All Students
II-A. Instruction - 2. Student Engagement
II-B. Learning Environment - 1. Safe Learning Environment
Standard III - Family and Community Engagement
III-B. Collaboration - 2. Curriculum Support
Standard IV - Professional Culture
IV-A. Reflection - 1. Reflective Practice
Lastly, keys to this reengagement of all evaluations systems is open communication,
collaboration and flexibility. We have a systematic opportunity to be on the same page and
build these processes and invaluable dialog for continuous improvement together as a District.
________________________________________________________________
An outreach email was sent to all DCRSD families specific to COVID testing and open lines of
communication. I did receive some feedback and agree that I did not completely close the loop
on close contacts. Our incredible school nursing members and the COVID coordinator reach

out to all close contacts within the same day of learning of a positive case. If you are not
contacted, the information gathered did not include your child as a close contact in accordance
with the charts that were attached to the email. If you have a question and believe your child is
a close contact, please contact the school nurse the next day. Again, our daily efforts are to
contact all close contacts in the same day of learning of a positive COVID case. As always, if
you have a question regarding COVID please feel free to contact Ms. Brittany Stolberg our
COVID Coordinator.
_____________________________________________________________________
The Policy Subcommittee has embarked on a new feedback loop with DCRSD families. As
School Committee Policies are reviewed, updated or created, and after the School Committee
First Read, the draft redline versions will be sent out to all DCRSD families via our District
communication system. The Policy Subcommittee will take all feedback under consideration in
the Policy Adoption process.
I received some feedback after sending an email to all families. One point that was made, and
appreciated, was the connection to the alphabet soup associated with the title of the policy.
More specifically, are the capital letters a representative acronym. This is a great question and I
hope to shed some light on the lettering of the polices.
The lettering of the policies, e.g. ACAB, JIC, BBAA, follow a National School Boards
Association classification system. The lettering system provides an efficient means of coding,
filing, and finding policies across districts and states. There are 12 major classifications, each
assigned an alphabetical code: [first letter]
A - Foundations and Basic Commitments
B - School Board Governance
C – General School Administration
D – Fiscal Management
E – Support Services
F – Facilities Development

G – Personnel
H – Negotiations
I – Instructional Program
J – Students
K – School/Community Relations
L – Education Agency Relation

From there, I can share that it is not perfect and if a school committee, any school committee
chooses to adopt a new policy that does not have a repeatable code, it often leads to variations
in full letter coding but not first letter category coding.
I certainly hope this helps add some light to the alphabet soup and I appreciate the feedback.

New Business:
A.

Appointment of School Committee Secretary and Records Access Officer (RAO)
With Ms. Sandy Sullivan’s retirement and Ms. Erin Glenn’s arrival, the School
Committee must officially vote to appoint Ms. Erin Glenn as the School Committee
Secretary and as the DCRSD RAO – Records Access Officer

B.
Report of the Director of Finance and Operations and the Budget and Finance
Subcommittee – Director Mathieu and Budget and Finance Chair Laferriere
Please see Director Mathieu’s DFO report

Budget and Finance Subcommittee met Tuesday, September 28, 2021
C.

Report of the Assistant Superintendent – Dr. Ackerman
Please see Assistant Superintendent Dr. Ackerman’s report
Principal Starczewski is an integral leader in the research of new middle school
mathematics instruction materials

D.

Report of the Capital Outlay Safety Committee – Chair Terry
The Capital Outlay Safety Committee met Friday, September 17, 2021

E.

MASC Report of the Resolution Committee
The following resolutions [and found in the file with greater detail] are up for
DCRSD School Committee vote for consideration/support
1.
Dedicated Funding for School-Based Clinics and Services
2.
Homework Gap and WIFI/Internet Access
3.
IDEA Full Funding Act
4.
Recess
5.
Zero-tolerance Policies
6.
Alternative to MCAS
7.
School Committees and Receivership
8.
Electronic School Buses
9.
Prohibiting the Use of Native American Mascots

F.

Update Superintendent’s Self-Assessment
You will find a copy of the self-assessment rubric in the folder.

On the self-assessment you will find thirty-two indicators listed as proficient. Additionally, you
will find ten indicators listed as need improvement for this current school year. At the next
school committee meeting I will present four goals specific to each standard with some
connection to the self-identified indicators of “needs improvement” in said standard.
Highlighted indicators represent recommended “look fors” [focus indicators] for the 20212022 School Year.
Standard 1
I-B-1. Instructional Practices
I-C-1. Variety of Assessments
I-D-1. Educator Goals
I-D-2. Observations and Feedback
I-D-3. Ratings
I-E-3. Improvement of Performance, Effectiveness and Learning
Standard II
II-A-3. Student Safety, Health, and Social and Emotional Needs
Standard III
III-A-2. Community and Business Engagement
Standard IV
IV-C-1. Communication Skills
IV-E-1. Shared Vision Development

DUDLEY‐CHARLTON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

TO:
FROM:
CC:
DATE:
SUBJECT:

School Committee Members
Richard J. Mathieu, Director of Finance and Operations
Steven Lamarche, Superintendent
October, 7, 2021
Finance Director Update – October 13, 2021

Donations
Please see attached memos from Principal Chaplin for donations to the athletics department and for
the First Honors Dinner held 9/29/2021.
The Masonic Angel sat The Overlook donated $225 to be used to help sponsor students in the “After
the Bell” program at Heritage School.
FY20 Financial Audit
The FY20 audit report booklets are available in the District office, and copies will be brought to the
School Committee meeting. FY20 was an incredibly difficult year, and its closeout was significantly
delayed due to the need of the district in the summer, fall and winter to open schools for 2020‐21.
Those circumstances and the ramifications from them should not be repeated
Medicare Plan Renewal
The Mass Strategic Health Group (MSHG) Medicare plan for retired members over the age of 65 –
Aetna Medicare Advantage – renews on January 1, 2022. For the upcoming year there was a capped
maximum rate increase of $15, which is the last year of our initial rate caps. However, based on our
experience history the rate increase came in at $10.84, leaving the rates for next year at $286.68. As a
reminder, this rate in 2019 was $309.07. In reviewing usage of the plans, there remain benefits that
appear to be under utilized by members, such as free transportation to medical appointments, free
meals and silver sneaker gym memberships. Retiree First plans to do outreach to members to remind
them of the benefits so that members are aware of them.
Additionally, MSHG has voted to offer the City of Fall River membership for its retiree population. The
arrangement means that they will have their own experience history and their plans will be priced
separately from ours. As a result of Fall River’s inclusion, the District’s rate for 2022 has been
guaranteed for 2023, and caped maximum rate increases of $10 for 2024 and 2025. This means the
District will still be paying less in 2025 than it was in 2019.
Life Insurance Carrier
The District has been with Boston Mutual Group Life for life insurance coverage for many years. Over
the past 8 years we have not received price increases, but we found out recently that this is not due to
the business model, but rather because our account seemed to have slipped between the cracks.
Boston Mutual is claiming that they have experienced a 136% loss on our plan, and have demanded
immediate rate increases. This is coverage that the District pays 50% of for the basic plans, and
employees can choose to have higher coverage for which they pay 100%. It seems unfair to both
employees and the District to introduce increases midway through the year. In working with our
brokers, we secured the same coverage through a different carrier, Symetra. In order to make the
transfer from one plan to the other, we plan to renew with Boston Mutual through the end of
December. We will then switch to the new carrier at the existing rate, with rates locked in for two

years. Boston Mutual is aware of this and at the last minute held our rates the same for the two
months of transition. I recommend School Committee vote to change carriers.
General Ledger Software Update
The formal training sessions on the new general ledger begin in earnest at the end of October. The
timeline for training and implementation is set for a complete turnover to the new Infinite Visions
software for FY 2023 (school year 2022‐23). The School Committee will receive periodic updates on
the process.

Warrants
Warrants approved electronically (yellow folder):

W# 24 ‐ 30
Payroll and deduction Warrants (red folder)
Yes
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Honorable School Committee
Dudley-Charlton Regional School District
Dudley, Massachusetts
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District (District), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the District, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

1

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 18, 2021, on
our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

August 18, 2021
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As management of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District, we offer readers of these financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2020. The District
complies with financial reporting requirements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
Management’s discussion and analysis are part of these requirements.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Dudley-Charlton Regional School
District’s basic financial statements. These basic financial statements comprise of three components:
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.
The statement of net position presents information on all assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred
inflows, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed during the most
recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods (e.g., uncollected revenues and
earned but unused vacation leave).
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are principally supported by member
town assessments and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities include providing pupil education at the seven District schools, facility
maintenance, employee benefits, and central services. The District had no business-type activities.
Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.
Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well
as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a District’s near-term financing requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

Dudley-Charlton Regional School District
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The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.
Proprietary funds. The District maintains one type of proprietary fund.
The internal service fund is used to account for the financing of services provided by one department to other
departments or governmental units. This fund is used to account for risk financing activities related to active
employees’ and retirees’ health insurance.
Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources
of those funds are not available to support the District’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for propriety funds.
Notes to the basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
COVID-19
On March 27, 2020, the United States Federal Government established the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic
Security (CARES) Act in response to the economic downfall caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. This Act
requires that the payment from these funds be used only to cover expenses that; are necessary due to the public
health emergency with respect COVID-19; were not accounted for in the budget most recently approved as of
March 27, 2020; and were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and ends on December 31,
2021. As of June 30, 2020, the District has not incurred any COVID-19 related reimbursable expenses.

Dudley-Charlton Regional School District
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Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
Assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $5.1 million at the close of 2020.
Governmental Net position

Assets:
Current assets………………………………………… $
Capital assets, nondepreciable………………………
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation……
Total assets…………………………………………
Deferred outflows of resources………………………

2020

2019

14,411,134 $
500,000
40,804,329
55,715,463

13,747,306
500,000
42,237,067
56,484,373

2,071,341

2,724,911

Liabilities:
Current liabilities (excluding debt)……………………
Noncurrent liabilities (excluding debt)………………
Current debt……………………………………………
Noncurrent debt…………………………………………
Total liabilities……………………………………

5,534,774
42,936,311
265,419
930,000
49,666,504

5,582,187
44,529,699
263,023
1,195,419
51,570,328

Deferred inflows of resources…………………………

3,058,089

3,094,524

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets……………………
Restricted………………………………………………
Unrestricted……………………………………………

40,108,910
6,576,601
(41,623,300)

41,278,625
5,887,574
(42,621,767)

Total net position…………………………………$

5,062,211 $

4,544,432

Net position of $40.1 million reflects the District’s investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery,
and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The District uses
these capital assets to provide services to pupils; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the investment in its capital assets is reported net of its related debt, it should be noted that
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
An additional portion of the net position, $6.6 million, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position, a deficit of $41.6 million, reflects
the impact of the $26.7 million other postemployment benefit liability and the recognition of the $15.0 million net
pension liability.
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2020

2019

781,389 $
17,116,375

1,111,866
13,826,870

Program Revenues:
Charges for services…………………………………………$
Operating grants and contributions………………………
General Revenues:
Member town assessments………………………………
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs………………………………………
Unrestricted investment income……………………………
Miscellaneous………………………………………………
Total revenues…………………………………………

24,691,283
57,237
122,865
65,039,946

24,737,694
71,424
240,336
63,284,247

Expenses:
District administration………………………………………
Instructional support…………………………………………
Preschool and special education…………………………
Transportation services……………………………………
Food services…………………………………………………
Athletics & student activities………………………………
Other school services………………………………………
Facilities………………………………………………………
Interest………………………………………………………
Depreciation…………………………………………………
Federal and state grants……………………………………
Employee benefits and other fixed charges………………
Total expenses…………………………………………

1,275,484
22,470,690
9,595,050
2,390,464
1,107,257
534,498
1,997,195
3,208,963
37,638
2,007,808
1,760,295
18,136,825
64,522,167

1,267,304
21,898,808
9,315,010
3,056,691
1,157,260
527,264
2,080,341
3,374,358
196,716
1,973,260
1,430,206
16,123,958
62,401,176

Change in net position………………………………………

517,779

883,071

Net position, beginning of year……………………………

4,544,432

3,661,361

Net position, end of year…………………………………… $

5,062,211 $

4,544,432

22,270,797

23,296,057
.

The governmental activities net position increased by $518,000 in 2020. This increase is primarily due to a $1.8
million increase from the change in the net other postemployment benefit liability and the related deferred
inflows/outflows of resources which was offset by an $890,000 decrease from the change in the total pension
liability and the related deferred inflows/outflows of resources, and a $300,00 decrease in the health insurance
trust fund.

Financial Analysis of the Governmental Funds
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.
Governmental funds. The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the District’s
net resources available for spending at the end of the year.
As of the end of the current year, governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $6.0 million, an
increase of $1.1 million in comparison with the prior year.
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The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current year, unassigned fund balance of the
general fund was $1.5 million. Assigned fund balance, which represents E&D used to balance the FY2021
budget, totaled $1.1 million. See Note 9 for further details.
The nonmajor governmental funds ended the year with a fund balance of $3.3 million, an increase of $989,000
over the prior year.
The internal service fund had a fund balance of $3.2 million at the end of the current year, a decrease of $300,000
over the prior year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
There was no change between the $50.0 million original budget and the final budget in 2020. All budgetary
transfers between line items were approved by the School Committee.
General fund revenues came in $163,000 less than budgeted, while general fund expenditures came in $1.4
million less than budgeted. The most significant unexpended balances were in district administration and
transportation totaling $518,000 and $778,000, respectively.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets
The District’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2020, amounts to $41.3 million (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements, buildings and improvements,
machinery and equipment, and vehicles.
Capital asset additions, totaling $575,000, consisted of various equipment and vehicle purchases, as well as
several building improvements.
Debt Administration
The District maintains a AA Bond Rating with Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. on its long-term debt. At the end of
the year the District had total long-term bonded debt outstanding of $1.1 million. During 2020, the District paid
down $150,000 in debt principal.
Please refer to notes 4, 7 and 8 for further discussion of the major capital and debt activity.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Director of
Finance and Operations, Dudley-Charlton Regional School District, 68 Dudley-Oxford Road, Dudley, MA 01571.
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STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

Primary Government
Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
CURRENT:
Cash and cash equivalents…………………………………………$
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Intergovernmental………………………………………………
Other assets…………………………………………………………
Total current assets…………………………………………

13,327,878
978,905
104,351
14,411,134

NONCURRENT:
Capital assets, nondepreciable……………………………………
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation…………………

500,000
40,804,329

Total noncurrent assets………………………………………

41,304,329

TOTAL ASSETS…………………………………………………………

55,715,463

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions……………………………
Deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits……

1,075,472
995,869

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES………………

2,071,341

LIABILITIES
CURRENT:
Warrants payable……………………………………………………
Accrued payroll………………………………………………………
Accrued vacation time………………………………………………
Accrued sick time……………………………………………………
Capital lease obligations……………………………………………
Bonds payable………………………………………………………

652,391
4,045,135
414,973
422,275
115,419
150,000

Total current liabilities…………………………………………

5,800,193

NONCURRENT:
Accrued sick time……………………………………………………
Net pension liability…………………………………………………
Total other postemployment benefits liability……………………
Bonds payable………………………………………………………

1,266,825
14,965,953
26,703,533
930,000

Total noncurrent liabilities……………………………………

43,866,311

TOTAL LIABILITIES……………………………………………………

49,666,504

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Advance payments…………………………………………………
Deferred inflows related to pensions………………………………
Deferred inflows related to other postemployment benefits……

79,230
524,374
2,454,485

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES…………………

3,058,089

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets………………………………..………
Restricted for:
Health trust……………………………………………………………
Gifts and grants………………………………………………………
Unrestricted………………………………………………………………
TOTAL NET POSITION…………………………………………………$

40,108,910
3,235,311
3,341,290
(41,623,300)
5,062,211

See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Program Revenues
Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Charges for
Services

Expenses

Net (Expense)
Revenue

Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
District administration………………………………… $
Instructional support……………………………………
Preschool and special education……………………
Transportation services………………………………
Food services…………………………………………
Athletics & student activities…………………………
Other school services…………………………………
Facilities…………………………………………………
Interest…………………………………………………
Depreciation……………………………………………
Federal and state grants………………………………
Employee benefits and other fixed charges…………

1,275,484
22,470,690
9,595,050
2,390,464
1,107,257
534,498
1,997,195
3,208,963
37,638
2,007,808
1,760,295
18,136,825

$

457,387
241,824
72,172
10,006
-

$

861,958
817,533
2,438,703
668,034
15,267
86,882
9,755
1,880,836
10,337,407

$

(1,275,484)
(21,608,732)
(8,777,517)
48,239
18,164
(277,407)
(1,838,141)
(3,189,202)
(37,638)
(2,007,808)
120,541
(7,799,418)

Total Governmental Activities………………………$

64,522,167

$

781,389

$

17,116,375

$

(46,624,403)
(Continued)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Primary Government
Governmental
Activities
Changes in net position:
Net (expense) revenue from previous page…………………… $
General revenues:
Member town assessments……………………………………
Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs……………………………………………
Unrestricted investment income………………………………
Miscellaneous revenue…………………………………………

(46,624,403)
22,270,797
24,691,283
57,237
122,865

Total general revenues……………………………………………

47,142,182

Change in net position………………………………………

517,779

Net position:
Beginning of year………………………….……………………

4,544,432

End of year……………………………………………………… $

5,062,211
(Concluded)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2020

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

General
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents……………………………………$
Receivables, net of uncollectibles:
Intergovernmental…………………………………………
Other assets……………………………………………………

7,584,787

$

10,243

2,434,352

Total
Governmental
Funds
$

978,905
94,108

10,019,139
978,905
104,351

TOTAL ASSETS……………………………………………… $

7,595,030

$

3,507,365

$

11,102,395

LIABILITIES
Warrants payable………………………………………… $
Accrued payroll……………………………………………
Accrued vacation time……………………………………

652,391
3,879,060
414,973

$

166,075
-

$

652,391
4,045,135
414,973

TOTAL LIABILITIES……………………………………………

4,946,424

166,075

5,112,499

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Advance payments…………………………………………

5,802

-

5,802

FUND BALANCES
Restricted……………………………………………………
Assigned……………………………………………………
Unassigned…………………………………………………

1,097,380
1,545,424

3,341,290
-

3,341,290
1,097,380
1,545,424

TOTAL FUND BALANCES……………………………………

2,642,804

3,341,290

5,984,094

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES………………… $

7,595,030

$

3,507,365

$

11,102,395

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

Total governmental fund balances…………………………………………………………………

$

Capital assets (net) used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds…………………………………………………

41,304,329

The statement of net position includes certain deferred inflows of resources
and deferred outflows of resources that will be amortized over future periods.
In governmental funds, these amounts are not deferred……………………………………

(907,518)

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
the governmental activities in the statement of net position….......................................
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the governmental funds:
Bonds payable………………………………………………………………………………
Net pension liability…………………………………………………………………………
Net other postemployment benefits liability………………………………………………
Capital lease obligations……………………………………………………………………
Accrued sick time……………………………………………………………………………

3,235,311

(1,080,000)
(14,965,953)
(26,703,533)
(115,419)
(1,689,100)

Net effect of reporting long-term liabilities……………………………………………
Net position of governmental activities……………………………………………………………

5,984,094

(44,554,005)
$

5,062,211

See notes to basic financial statements.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

General
REVENUES:
Member town assessments…………………………………………………$
Intergovernmental……………………………………………………………
Intergovernmental - Teachers Retirement…………………………………
Fees and rentals………………………………………………………………
Investment income……………………………………………………………
Contributions and donations…………………………………………………
Miscellaneous revenue………………………………………………………
TOTAL REVENUES…………………………………………………
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
District administration……………………………………………………
Instructional support………………………………………………………
Preschool and special education………………………………………
Transportation services…………………………………………………
Food services……………………………………………………………
Athletics & student activities……………………………………………
Other school services……………………………………………………
Facilities……………………………………………………………………
Employee benefits and other fixed charges……………………………
Pension benefits - Teachers retirement………………………………
Federal and state grants……………………………………………………
Debt service:
Principal……………………………………………………………………
Interest……………………………………………………………………
TOTAL EXPENDITURES……………………………………………

Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

Total
Governmental
Funds

22,270,797 $
26,103,796
10,337,407
10,006
54,285
126,520

- $
5,282,261
821,065
53,060
-

22,270,797
31,386,057
10,337,407
831,071
54,285
53,060
126,520

58,902,811

6,156,386

65,059,197

1,275,484
22,129,001
8,656,935
2,390,464
316,266
1,918,638
3,378,240
8,391,244
10,337,407
-

810,632
939,428
1,114,275
237,732
78,557
9,755
1,796,295

1,275,484
22,939,633
9,596,363
2,390,464
1,114,275
553,998
1,997,195
3,387,995
8,391,244
10,337,407
1,796,295

150,000
37,638

-

150,000
37,638

58,981,317

4,986,674

63,967,991

1,169,712

1,091,206

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES…………………………………………

(78,506)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in……………………………………………………………………
Transfers out…………………………………………………………………

180,217
-

(180,217)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)…………………

180,217

(180,217)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES…………………………………………

101,711

989,495

1,091,206

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED…………

2,541,093

2,351,795

4,892,888

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR……………………………………… $

2,642,804 $

3,341,290 $

5,984,094

180,217
(180,217)
-

See notes to basic financial statements.
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RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds………………………………………………………….…
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Capital outlay…………………………………………………………………………………………………
Depreciation expense…………………………………………………………………………………………

$

1,091,206

575,070
(2,007,808)

Net effect of reporting capital assets…………………………………………………………………

(1,432,738)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are unavailable in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various
types of accounts receivable differ between the two statements. This amount
represents the net change in unavailable revenue……………………………………………………………

(18,548)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect
on net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums,
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are unavailable and amortized in the Statement of Activities.
Principal payments on capital leases………………………………………………………………………
Debt service principal payments……………………………………………………………………………

113,023
150,000

Net effect of reporting long-term debt………………………………………………………………
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds.
Net change in compensated absences accrual……………………………………………………………
Net change in deferred outflow/(inflow) of resources related to pensions………………………………
Net change in net pension liability……………………………………………………………………………
Net change in deferred outflow/(inflow) of resources related to other postemployment benefits……
Net change in net other postemployment benefits liability…………………………………………………

263,023

23,713
(1,046,806)
156,581
362,794
1,419,022

Net effect of recording long-term liabilities………………………………………………………. …

915,304

The net activity of the internal service fund is reported within the Governmental Activities…....................
Change in net position of governmental activities……………………………………………………………………

(300,468)
$

517,779

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020
Governmental
Activities Internal Service
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents……………………………………………… $
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Advance payments…………………………………………………………

3,308,739

73,428

NET POSITION
Unrestricted…………………………………………………………………$

3,235,311

See notes to basic financial statements.

Dudley-Charlton Regional School District

18

Basic Financial Statements

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Governmental
Activities Internal Service
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Employee contributions……………………………………………… $
Employer contributions………………………………………………
Other operating revenues……………………………………………
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ………………………………
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Employee benefits……………………………………………………
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)…………………………………
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income……………………………………………………
CHANGE IN NET POSITION……………………………………

2,218,681
5,510,438
207,151
7,936,270

8,239,690
(303,420)

2,952
(300,468)

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED…….…

3,535,779

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR…………………………………… $

3,235,311

See notes to basic financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Governmental
Activities Internal Service
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users……………………………………………… $
Receipts from interfund services provided………………………………………
Payments for interfund services used……………………………………………
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES………………………………………
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Investment income…………………………………………………………………
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS………………………………

2,150,351
5,717,589
(8,518,939)
(650,999)

2,952
(648,047)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR……………………

3,956,786

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR…………………………… $

3,308,739

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)…………………………………………………………… $
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash from operating activities:
Advance payments………………………………………………………………
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Health claims payable………………………………………………………
Total adjustments…………………………………………………………
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES……………………………………… $

(303,420)

(68,330)
(279,249)
(347,579)
(650,999)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

Private
Purpose
Trust Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents…………………………………………$
LIABILITIES
Liabilities due depositors……………………………………………
NET POSITION
Held in trust for other purposes…………………………….………$

33,479

Agency
Funds
$

-

33,479

550,740

550,740

$

-

See notes to basic financial statements.
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Private
Purpose
Trust Funds
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Private donations………………………………………………………………$

478

Net investment income:
Investment income……………………………………………………………

185

TOTAL ADDITIONS………………………………………………………

663

DEDUCTIONS:
Educational scholarships……………………………………………………

4,150

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION……………………

(3,487)

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR……………………………………

36,966

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR…………………………………………… $

33,479

See notes to basic financial statements.
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Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Notes to basic financial statements
The accompanying basic financial statements of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District (District) have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the recognized standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting policies are described
herein.
A. Reporting Entity
The Dudley-Charlton Regional School District began operations in 1971 and operates under a regional
agreement. The District is comprised of the Towns of Dudley and Charlton and serves the educational needs of
students in grades Pre-K through 12. The form of government is an elected seven-member School Committee,
which is responsible for appointing a Superintendent who is the chief operating official for the District.
The District operates seven schools. The District is responsible for the operating costs that are apportioned
among the member towns based on State law, student enrollment, and the regional agreement. Capital costs are
apportioned to the Town based on the regional agreement.
As required by GAAP, these financial statements present the District (the primary government) and its component
units. It has been determined that there are no component units that meet the requirements for inclusion in the
District’s financial statements.
Joint Venture
The District is a member of the Southern Worcester County Educational Collaborative (Collaborative). The
Collaborative provides various educational programs and transportation to its members which would not be
feasible for individual school systems to provide. The District incurred $995,610 of expenditures associated with
services provided by the Collaborative in 2020. The Collaborative issues a publicly available financial report.
That report may be obtained by contacting the Collaborative at 185 Southbridge Road, Dudley, Massachusetts
01550.
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., statement of net position and the statement of changes in net
position) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component
units. Governmental activities are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues.
Fund Financial Statements
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. Nonmajor funds are
aggregated and displayed in a single column.
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Major Fund Criteria
Major funds must be reported if the following criteria are met:


If the total assets and deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses of an individual governmental fund are at least 10 percent of the
corresponding element (assets, liabilities, etc.) for all funds of that category or type (total
governmental funds), and



If the total assets and deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund are at least 5 percent of the
corresponding element for all governmental funds combined.



Additionally, any other governmental fund that management believes is particularly significant to
the basic financial statements may be reported as a major fund.

Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a particular function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include the following:


Charges to consumers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.



Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a particular
function or segment.

Other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.
The effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial statements.
Fund Financial Statements
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of
the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liquidated with current expendable available resources.
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Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and revenues become measurable and available
when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.
Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.
The following major governmental fund is reported:
The general fund is the primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources, except those that
are required to be accounted for in another fund.
The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue and capital projects that are aggregated and
presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental fund’s financial statements. The
following describes the general use of these fund types:
The special revenue fund is used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than permanent funds or capital projects.
The capital project fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities.
Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liabilities are incurred.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
The following major proprietary fund is reported:
The internal service fund is used to account for the financing of services provided by one department to other
departments or governmental units. This fund is used to account for risk financing activities related to active
employees’ and retirees’ health insurance.
Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the governmental programs.
The following fiduciary fund types are reported:
The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements under which principal and investment
income exclusively benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments.
The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a purely custodial capacity.
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D. Cash and Investments
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments are carried at fair value.
E. Fair Value Measurements
The District reports required types of financial instruments in accordance with the fair value standards. These
standards require an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs (such as quoted prices in active markets)
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs (such as appraisals or valuation techniques) to determine fair value.
Fair value standards also require the government to classify these financial instruments into a three-level
hierarchy, based on the priority of inputs to the valuation technique or in accordance with net asset value practical
expedient rules, which allow for either Level 2 or Level 3 depending on lock up and notice periods associated with
the underlying funds.
Instruments measured and reported at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the following categories:
Level 1 – Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical instruments as of the reporting date.
Instruments, which are generally included in this category, include actively traded equity and debt securities, U.S.
government obligations, and mutual funds with quoted market prices in active markets.
Level 2 – Pricing inputs are other than quoted in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly observable
as of the reporting date, and fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies.
Certain fixed income securities, primarily corporate bonds, are classified as Level 2 because fair values are
estimated using pricing models, matrix pricing, or discounted cash flows.
Level 3 – Pricing inputs are unobservable for the instrument and include situations where there is little, if any,
market activity for the instrument. The inputs into the determination of fair value require significant management
judgment or estimation.
In some instances, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy
and is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
Market price is affected by a number of factors, including the type of instrument and the characteristics specific to
the instrument. Instruments with readily available active quoted prices generally will have a higher degree of
market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. It is reasonably possible
that change in values of these instruments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially
affect amounts reported in these financial statements.
The District did not have any financial instruments types meeting the requirements for reporting with fair value
standards.
F. Accounts Receivable
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial statements
and the proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of
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accounting. The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the governmental funds
financial statements are reported under the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Intergovernmental
Various federal and state grants for operating and capital purposes are applied for and received annually. For
non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, receivables are recorded when the qualifying
expenditures are incurred, and all other grant requirements are met.
Departmental
Departmental receivables consist of student services, facilities rentals, childcare, and school lunch local receipts,
among others.
These receivables are considered 100% collectible and therefore do not report an allowance for uncollectibles.
G. Inventories
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories are not material in total to the
government-wide and fund financial statements, and therefore are not reported.
H. Capital Assets
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, and equipment, are reported in the governmentwide financial statements. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or at estimated historical cost, if actual
historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date
of donation. Except for the capital assets of the governmental activities column in the government-wide financial
statements, construction period interest is capitalized on constructed capital assets.
All purchases and construction costs greater than $5,000 with expected useful lives of greater than one year are
capitalized at the date of acquisition or construction.
Capital assets (excluding land) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives, in years, of
capital assets are as follows:
Estimated
Useful Life
(in years)

Capital Asset Type
Land improvements………………………………………
Buildings and improvements……………………………
Machinery and equipment………………………………
Vehicles……………………………………………………

20
50
5 - 15
5-8

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are capitalized.
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Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the year of the purchase.
I. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net Position)
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District reports deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions and other postemployment benefits in this category.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The District reports advance payments and deferred inflows related to pensions and
other postemployment benefits in this category.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements
In addition to liabilities, the governmental funds balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents assets that have been recorded in the governmental fund financial statements but the revenue is not
available and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until it becomes available. The District
reports unavailable revenue in this category.
J. Interfund Receivables and Payables
During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds.
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities are reported in the statement of net position as “internal balances”.
Fund Financial Statements
Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund
statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due from other funds”
or “Due to other funds” on the balance sheet.
K. Interfund Transfers
During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds. These
transactions are reported as transfers in and transfers out.
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Government-Wide Financial Statements
Transfers between and within governmental funds and internal service funds are eliminated from the
governmental activities in the statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of activities as “Transfers, net”.
Fund Financial Statements
Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as
transfers in and transfers out.
L. Net Position and Fund Equity
Government-Wide Financial Statements (Net position)
Net position is reported as restricted when amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted
by outside parties for a specific future use. Net position has been “restricted for” the following:
“Health trust” represents assets that are restricted for employees health insurance benefits.
“Gifts and grants” represents assets that have restrictions placed on them from outside parties.
Sometimes the District will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g. restricted bond or grant
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted – net position and
unrestricted – net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption
must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the District’s policy to
consider restricted – net position to have been depleted before unrestricted – net position is applied.
Fund Financial Statements (Fund Balances)
Governmental fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned
based on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which
amounts in those funds can be spent.
The governmental fund balance classifications are as follows:
“Nonspendable” fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable
form or they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
“Restricted” fund balance includes amounts subject to constraints placed on the use of resources that are either
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or that are
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
“Committed” fund balance includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. The School Committee
is the highest level of decision-making authority that can commit funds for a specific purpose. Only voted, the
limitation imposed by the vote remains in place until the funds are used for their intended purpose or a vote is
taken to rescind the commitment.
“Assigned” fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the District’s intent to be used for specific
purposes but are neither restricted nor committed. The Director of Finance and Operations is authorized to
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assign fund balance. Assignments generally only exist temporarily. Additional action does not have to be taken
for the removal of an assignment.
“Unassigned” fund balance includes the residual classification for the general fund. This classification represents
fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned
to specific purposes within the general fund.
The District’s spending policy is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned and
unassigned fund balance. Most governmental funds are designated for one purpose at the time of their creation.
Therefore, any expenditure from the fund will be allocated to the applicable fund balance classifications in the
order of the aforementioned spending policy. The general fund and certain other funds may have more than one
purpose.
M. Long-Term Debt
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide statement of net position. Material bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements
The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond premiums are reported as
other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general government expenditures.
N. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Worcester
Regional Retirement System (WRRS) and the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System (MTRS) and
additions to/deductions from the System’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by the System. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
O. Investment Income
Investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is legally assigned to the general fund
unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL).
Proprietary funds retain their investment income.
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P. Compensated Absences
Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred.
Governmental Fund Financial Statements
Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities.
Q. Use of Estimates
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.
R. Total Column
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.
Fund Financial Statements
The total column on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in this
column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Statutes authorize the investment in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities, certificates
of deposit, repurchase agreements, money market accounts, bank deposits and the State Treasurer's Investment
Pool (Pool). In addition, there are various restrictions limiting the amount and length of deposits and investments.
The District maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds, except the Trust Funds.
Each fund type's portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "Cash and Cash
Equivalents". The deposits and investments of the Trust Funds are held separately from those of other District
funds.
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not
be returned to it. The District has not formally adopted a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits. At year-end,
the carrying amount of deposits totaled $13,912,097 and the bank balance totaled $14,826,623. Of the bank
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balance, $573,279 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and $14,253,344 was covered by the
Depositor’s Insurance Fund.

NOTE 3 – RECEIVABLES
Outstanding receivables for the year ended June 30, 2020, totaled $978,905 and related to various federal and
state grants.
NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS
Governmental activities capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land………………………………………………… $

Increases

500,000 $

Decreases

- $

Ending
Balance

- $

500,000

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements…………………………………
Buildings and improvements………………………
Machinery and equipment…………………………
Vehicles………………………………………………

4,181,496
76,558,627
3,353,230
282,832

307,982
211,588
55,500

-

4,181,496
76,866,609
3,564,818
338,332

Total capital assets being depreciated………

84,376,185

575,070

-

84,951,255

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements…………………………………
Buildings and improvements………………………
Machinery and equipment…………………………
Vehicles………………………………………………

(2,403,784)
(37,144,279)
(2,405,379)
(185,676)

(275,245)
(1,594,983)
(127,208)
(10,372)

-

(2,679,029)
(38,739,262)
(2,532,587)
(196,048)

Total accumulated depreciation………………

(42,139,118)

(2,007,808)

-

(44,146,926)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net…………

42,237,067

(1,432,738)

-

40,804,329

Total governmental activities capital assets, net…… $

42,737,067 $

(1,432,738) $

- $

41,304,329

Depreciation expense is unallocated and presented as a separate line on the statement of activities.
NOTE 5 – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS
There were no interfund receivables or payables at June 30, 2020.
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the general fund received transfers from the regional transportation fund and
the athletic field donation fund of $110,684 and $69,533, respectively.
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL LEASES
The District has entered into a lease agreement to finance the purchase of IT equipment. This lease agreement
qualifies as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore, has been recorded at the present value of its
future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.
The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:
Governmental
Activities
Asset:
Machinery and equipment………… $
Less: accumulated depreciation…
Total………………………………… $

471,465
(235,733)
235,732

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30,
2020, were as follows:
Governmental
Activities

Years ending June 30:
2021……………………………………………… $
Less: amounts representing interest…………
Present value of minimum lease payments… $

117,866
(2,447)
115,419

NOTE 7 – SHORT-TERM FINANCING
Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following:


Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue or tax anticipation
notes (RANS or TANS).



Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BANS) or grant anticipation notes (GANS).

There were no short-term loans at year-end.
NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT
State law permits the District, under the provisions of Chapter 71, Section 16, to authorize indebtedness not to
exceed an amount approved by the Emergency Finance Board. Furthermore, written notice of the amount of debt
authorized and general purpose of the debt must be given to the Board of Selectmen in each of the member
town’s comprising the District.
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Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2020, and the debt service requirements are as
follows:

Project
Athletic Field………………

Original

Interest

Outstanding

Maturities

Loan

Rate

at June 30,

Through

Amount

(%)

2020

1,834,985

2-5

2029

$

$

1,080,000

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for governmental bonds payable in future years are as
follows:
Year

Principal

Interest

Total

2021……………$
2022……………
2023……………
2024……………
2025……………
2026……………
2027……………
2028……………
2029……………

150,000 $
150,000
150,000
150,000
125,000
105,000
100,000
75,000
75,000

31,637 $
25,637
19,638
13,638
10,638
8,137
5,906
3,656
1,874

181,637
175,637
169,638
163,638
135,638
113,137
105,906
78,656
76,874

Total……………$

1,080,000 $

120,761 $

1,200,761

The District is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. At June 30, 2020, the District had $382,072 of authorized and unissued debt.
Changes in Long-term Liabilities
During the year ended June 30, 2020, the following changes occurred in long-term liabilities:
Beginning
Balance

Bonds and
Notes
Issued

Bonds and
Notes
Redeemed

Other
Increases

Other
Decreases

Ending
Balance

Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities:
Long-term bonds payable……………………. $
Capital lease obligations………………………
Compensated absences………………………
Net pension liability……………………………
Total other postemployment benefit liability…

1,230,000 $
228,442
1,712,813
15,122,534
28,122,555

- $
-

(150,000) $
-

- $
- $
(113,023)
404,490
(428,203)
867,142
(1,023,723)
(475,069)
(943,953)

1,080,000 $
115,419
1,689,100
14,965,953
26,703,533

150,000
115,419
422,275
-

Total governmental activity
long-term liabilities………………………… $

46,416,344 $

- $

(150,000) $

796,563 $ (2,508,902) $

44,554,005 $

687,694
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NOTE 9 – GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS
GASB 54 provides for two major types of fund balances, which are nonspendable and spendable. Nonspendable
fund balances are balances that cannot be spent because they are not expected to be converted to cash or they
are legally or contractually required to remain intact. Examples of this classification are prepaid items,
inventories, and principal (corpus) of an endowment fund.
In addition to the nonspendable fund balance, GASB 54 has provided a hierarchy of spendable fund balances,
based on a hierarchy of spending constraints.


Restricted: fund balances that are constrained by external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling
legislation.



Committed: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government from its highest level
of decision-making authority.



Assigned: fund balances that contain self-imposed constraints of the government to be used for a
particular purpose.



Unassigned: fund balance of the general fund that is not constrained for any particular purpose.

The District has classified its fund balances with the following hierarchy:
Nonmajor
Governmental
Funds

General
Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
School revolving funds……………………$
School choice……………………………
Cafeteria……………………………………
Federal grants……………………………
State grants………………………………
Other special revenue funds……………
Assigned to:
E&D used for subsequent year budget……
Unassigned………………………………………

1,097,380
1,545,424

Total Fund Balances…………….……………………$

2,642,804 $

- $
-

1,701,753 $
502,297
262,057
104,551
6,216
764,416
3,341,290 $

Total
Governmental
Funds

1,701,753
502,297
262,057
104,551
6,216
764,416
1,097,380
1,545,424
5,984,094

NOTE 10 – RISK FINANCING
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the District carries commercial insurance. The amount of claim
settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the previous three years.
Effective July 1, 2019, the District ceased its self-insured group health insurance plan and all employees were
enrolled in the newly formed Massachusetts Strategic Health Group (MSHG). MSHG is a public entity risk pool
operating as a common risk management and insurance program established in accordance with MGL Chapter
32B, Section 12. MSHG currently services three employers for the joint negotiation and purchase of active and
retiree health insurance coverage. The participants do so to achieve the economies of scale and other benefits
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derived from joint negotiation and purchase. The District pays a monthly premium to MSGH for its health
insurance coverage for all active and retired employees.

NOTE 11 – PENSION PLAN
Plan Descriptions
The District is a member of the Worcester Regional Retirement System (WRRS), a cost-sharing multipleemployer defined benefit pension plan covering eligible employees of the 98 member units. The System is
administered by five board members (Board) on behalf of all current employees and retirees except for current
teachers and retired teachers. Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions of the plan. The System issues a publicly available financial report in accordance with guidelines
established by the Commonwealth’s Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). That
report may be obtained by contacting the System located at 23 Midstate Drive Suite #106 Auburn, MA 01501 or
its website http://worcesterregionalretirement.org/.
The District is a member of the Massachusetts Teachers’ Retirement System (MTRS), a cost-sharing multiemployer defined benefit plan. MTRS is managed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts (Commonwealth) on
behalf of municipal teachers and municipal teacher retirees. The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor
and is responsible for 100% of the contributions and future benefit requirements of the MTRS. The MTRS covers
certified teachers in cities (except Boston), towns, regional school districts, charter schools, educational
collaboratives and Quincy College. The MTRS is part of the Commonwealth’s reporting entity and the audited
financial report may be obtained by visiting http://www.mass.gov/osc/publications-and-reports/financial-reports/.
Special Funding Situation
The Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make 100% of all actuarially
determined employer contributions on behalf of the District to the MTRS. Therefore, the District is considered to
be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions and the Commonwealth is a nonemployer contributor in MTRS. Since the District does not contribute
directly to MTRS, there is no net pension liability to recognize. The total of the Commonwealth provided
contributions have been allocated based on each employer’s covered payroll to the total covered payroll of
employers in MTRS as of the measurement date of June 30, 2019. The District’s portion of the collective pension
expense, contributed by the Commonwealth, of $10,337,407 is reported in the general fund as intergovernmental
revenue and employee benefits and other fixed charges in the current year. The portion of the Commonwealth’s
collective net pension liability associated with the District is $85,244,761 as of the measurement date.
Benefits Provided
Both Systems provide retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Massachusetts Contributory Retirement System benefits are, with certain minor exceptions, uniform from system
to system. The System provides for retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a member's
highest three-year average annual rate of regular compensation. For persons who became members on or after
April 2, 2012, average salary is the average annual rate of regular compensation received during the five
consecutive years that produce the highest average, or, if greater, during the last five years (whether or not
consecutive) preceding retirement. Benefit payments are based upon a member's age, length of creditable
service, level of compensation, and group classification. Members become vested after ten years of creditable
service.
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Employees who resign from service and who are not eligible to receive a retirement allowance or are under the
age of 55 are entitled to request a refund of their accumulated total deductions. Survivor benefits are extended to
eligible beneficiaries of members whose death occurs prior to or following retirement.
Cost-of-living adjustments granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increase in other benefits imposed by the
Commonwealth’s state law during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the
pension fund. Cost-of-living adjustments granted after 1997 must be approved by the Board and are borne by the
System.
Contributions
Chapter 32 of the MGL governs the contributions of plan members and member units. Active plan members are
required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5% to 9% of gross regular compensation with an
additional 2% contribution required for compensation exceeding $30,000. The percentage rate is keyed to the
date upon which an employee's membership commences. The member units are required to pay into the WRRS
a legislatively mandated actuarial determined contribution that is apportioned among the employers based on
active current payroll. The District’s proportionate share of the required contribution equaled its actual
contribution for the year ended December 31, 2019, and totaled $1,023,723, 19.80% of covered payroll,
actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with plan member contributions, is expected to finance
the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability.
Pension Liabilities
At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $14,965,953 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2019, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2018. Accordingly,
update procedures were used to roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement date. The District’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to
the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially determined. At
December 31, 2019, the District’s proportion was 1.68%, which is an increase of 0.01% of its proportion
measured at December 31, 2018.
Pension Expense
For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of $1,913,349. At June 30, 2020, the
District reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions of $1,075,472 and $524,374,
respectively. Components of these elements are shown in the following table.
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred Category

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Total

Differences between expected and actual experience………………$
Difference between projected and actual earnings, net……………
Changes in assumptions………………………………………………
Changes in proportion and proportionate share of contributions…

43,948 $
836,479
195,045

(89,666) $
(411,064)
(23,644)

(45,718)
(411,064)
836,479
171,401

Total deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources……………………… $

1,075,472 $

(524,374) $

551,098
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The District’s deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:
Year ended June 30:
2020…............................. $
2021…………………………
2022…………………………
2023…………………………
2024…………………………
$

405,588
204,839
112,571
(234,471)
62,571
551,098

Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liability in the January 1, 2018, actuarial valuation was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement that was updated to
December 31, 2019:
Valuation date…………………………

January 1, 2018

Actuarial cost method………………

Entry Age Normal Cost Method.

Amortization method…………………

Payment increases 4.0% per year.

Remaining amortization period………

17 years, except for ERI for 2002 and 2003 (10 years) and 2010
(4 years).

Asset valuation method………………

Market value.

Inflation rate……………………………

2.4% per year.

Projected salary increases…………

Group 1: 4.25%-6%, based on service.
Group 4: 4.75%-7%, based on service.

Mortality rates…………………………

Based on the RP-2000 Mortality Table (base year 2009) with
full generational mortality improvement using Scale BB.
For disabled lives, the mortality rates were based on the RP2000 Mortality Table (base year 2012) with full generational
mortality improvement using Scale BB.

Investment rate of return……………… 7.65%, net of pension plan investment expense, including
inflation.

Investment Policy – The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established by
PRIT. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with a long-term objective of achieving a fully funded
status for the benefits provided through the pension plan.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset allocation as of December 31, 2019, are
summarized in the following table.
Long-Term Expected
Asset Allocation

Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Global equity………………………
Fixed income………………………
Private equity………………………
Real estate…………………………
Timber/natural resources…………
Portfolio completion strategies…

39.00%
23.00%
13.00%
10.00%
4.00%
11.00%

4.68%
1.90%
8.50%
3.70%
4.30%
3.40%

Total…………………………………

100.00%

Asset Class

Rate of Return
For the year ended December 31, 2019, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan investments,
net of pension plan investment expense, was 16.55%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.
Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.65%, previously 7.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan member contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.
Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the net pension liability, calculated using the discount rate of 7.65%, as well as what the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1percentage-point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease
(6.65%)
The District's proportionate share of the
net pension liability……………………… $

18,262,358 $

Current
Discount
(7.65%)

1% Increase
(8.65%)

14,965,953 $

12,182,230

Changes of Assumptions – The discount rate was reduced from 7.75% to 7.65%.
Changes in Benefits – None.
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NOTE 12 – POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
Plan Description – The Dudley-Charlton Regional School District administers a single-employer defined benefit
healthcare plan (Plan). The Plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses
through two separate plans. The District’s group health insurance plan covers its active member and the Group
Insurance Commission covers its retired members. Chapter 32B of the MGL assigns authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions of the plan. Benefit provisions are negotiated between the District and the unions
representing District employees and are renegotiated each bargaining period. No assets are accumulated in a
trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement #75.
Funding Policy – Contribution requirements are also negotiated between the District and union representatives.
The required contribution is based on a pay-as-you-go financing requirement. No assets have been accumulated
in a trust. The District contributes 90 percent of the cost of current-year premiums for eligible retired plan
members and their spouses. Plan members receiving benefits contribute the remaining 10 percent of their
premium costs.
Total OPEB Liability – GASB Statement #75 requires the total OPEB liability to be measured as of a date no
earlier than the end of the employer’s prior fiscal year and no later than the end of the employer’s current fiscal
year, consistently applied from period to period. The District’s total OPEB liability of $26,703,533 was measured
as of June 30, 2019, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018.
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms – The following table represents the Plan’s membership at June 30, 2018:
Active members……………………………………………………………
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits……

349
236

Total…………………………………………………………………………

585

Significant Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018, actuarial valuation
was determined by using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement,
unless otherwise specified, that was updated to June 30, 2019, to be in accordance with GASB Statement #75:
Valuation date………………………………

June 30, 2018

Actuarial cost method……………………… Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method.
Amortization method………………………

30 year open amortization.

Discount rate………………………………

3.50%, net of expenses

Medical cost trend rate……………………

8.00% ultimately decreasing to 5.00% by 2030.

Mortality rates………………………………

RP-2014 mortality table (combined healthy lives) with
projected mortality.

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the Total OPEB liability was 3.50% as of the June 30, 2019,
and June 30, 2018 measurement dates. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumes that contributions will be made in accordance with the Plan’s funding policy. Because there is no
funding policy, the discount rate was determined using the Bond Buyer GO-20 municipal bond index.
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Changes in the Total OPEB Liability as of the Measurement Date
Total OPEB
Liability
Balances at June 30, 2018………………………………………… $

28,122,555

Changes for the year:
Service cost………………………………………………………
Interest……………………………………………………………
Changes of benefit terms………………………………………
Benefit payments…………………………………………………

635,665
1,011,933
(2,122,667)
(943,953)

Net change……………………………………………………

(1,419,022)

Balances at June 30, 2019………………………………………… $

26,703,533

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – The following table presents the total
other postemployment benefit liability, calculated using the discount rate of 3.50%, as well as what the total other
postemployment benefit liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate.

1% Decrease
(2.50%)
Total OPEB liability…………$

31,522,687 $

Current
Discount Rate
(3.50%)

1% Increase
(4.50%)

26,703,533 $

22,896,967

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates – The following table
presents the total other postemployment benefit liability, calculated using the current healthcare trend rate of
8.00%, as well as what the total other postemployment benefit liability would be if it were calculated using a
healthcare trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher.
1% Decrease
Total OPEB liability…………$

23,446,793 $

Current Trend

1% Increase

26,703,533 $

30,126,648

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB – For
the year ended June 30, 2019, the GASB Statement #75 measurement date, the District recognized OPEB
expense of $825,711. The District also reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred Category

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Total

Differences between expected and actual experience………………$
Changes in assumptions………………………………………………
Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date………

- $
995,869

(550,032) $
(1,904,453)
-

(550,032)
(1,904,453)
995,869

Total deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources……………………… $

995,869 $

(2,454,485) $

(1,458,616)
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follows:
Year ended June 30:
2021………………………………………………………… $
2022…………………………………………………………
2023…………………………………………………………
2024…………………………………………………………
2025…………………………………………………………
2026 and thereafter…………………………………………

645,228
(350,641)
(350,641)
(350,641)
(350,641)
(701,280)

$

(1,458,616)

Changes of Assumptions – None.
Changes in Plan Provisions – None.
NOTE 13 – CONTINGENCIES
The District participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the grant programs have been audited
in accordance with the provisions of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, these programs are
still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by
the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although it is expected such amounts, if any, to be
immaterial.
Various legal actions and claims are pending. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and the outcome of
individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at June 30, 2020,
cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the financial
position at June 30, 2020.

NOTE 14 – EXCESS AND DEFICIENCY (E&D) ACCOUNT
Chapter 71 § Section 16B of MGL limits the unencumbered amount in the excess and deficiency fund of a
regional school district at the end of the preceding year, as certified by the commissioner of revenue pursuant to
section sixteen B1/2, to an amount not to exceed five per cent (5%) of the regional school district's operating
budget and its budgeted capital costs for the current year. It further states that the proportionate share of any
such excess should be used to reduce the member community’s assessment for the current year.

NOTE 15 – COVID-19
On March 10, 2020, the Massachusetts Governor declared a state of emergency in response to the coronavirus
outbreak. The World Health Organization officially declared the novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) a pandemic the
following day. In an attempt to slow the spread of COVID-19, governments issued various stay at home orders
that caused global economic shutdowns and substantial financial market impact. Starting in March 2020, the
Governor continued to issue orders allowing governments to operate and carry out essential functions
safely. These included modifying the state’s Open Meeting Law, issuing a stay-at-home order, and introducing a
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phased approach to reopening State businesses. Although the School was closed to students for a period of
time, most employees continued to perform their daily duties and maintain the School’s operations.
On March 27, 2020, the United States Federal Government established the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic
Security (CARES) Act in response to the economic downfall caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. This Act
requires that the payment from these funds be used only to cover expenses that; are necessary expenditures
incurred due to the public health emergency with respect COVID-19; were not accounted for in the budget most
recently approved as of March 27, 2020; and were incurred during the period that begins on March 1, 2020, and
ends on December 31, 2021. The Commonwealth and communities throughout the Commonwealth were
awarded a portion of this federal funding. In addition to funding from the CARES Act, there are several other
federal and state grants available.
The School has incurred unanticipated costs specifically related to the pandemic, in the subsequent fiscal
year. The full extent of the financial impact cannot be determined as of the date of the financial statements.
NOTE 16 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events through August 18, 2021, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 17 – RESTATEMENT OF BEGINNING BALANCES PREVIOUSLY REPORTED
The health insurance trust fund has been reclassified from the governmental fund financial statements to the
proprietary fund financial statements to be reported as an internal service fund. Accordingly, beginning net
position has been restated by $3,535,779.
NOTE 18 – IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS
During 2020, the following GASB pronouncement was implemented:


GASB Statement #95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. This
pronouncement postponed the effective dates of certain provisions in GASB Statements and
Implementation Guides that first became effective or are scheduled to be effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2018 or later.

The following GASB pronouncements will be implemented in the future:


The GASB issued Statement #84, Fiduciary Activities, which is required to be implemented in 2021.



The GASB issued Statement #87, Leases, which is required to be implemented in 2022.



The GASB issued Statement #89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction
Period, which is required to be implemented in 2022.



The GASB issued Statement #90, Majority Equity Interests – an amendment of GASB Statements #14
and #61, which is required to be implemented in 2021.
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The GASB issued Statement #91, Conduit Debt Obligations, which is required to be implemented in
2023.



The GASB issued Statement #92, Omnibus 2020, which is required to be implemented in 2022.



The GASB issued Statement #93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, which is required to be
implemented in 2022.



The GASB issued Statement #94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements, which is required to be implemented in 2023.



The GASB issued Statement #96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, which is
required to be implemented in 2023.



The GASB issued Statement #97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an amendment of
GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32, in which certain
paragraphs are required to be implemented in 2021 and 2022.

Management is currently assessing the impact the implementation of these pronouncements will have on the
basic financial statements.
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General Fund Budgetary
Comparison Schedule
General fund budgetary comparison schedule
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all of the District’s
financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Budgeted Amounts
Original
Budget
REVENUES:
Member town assessments…………………………………………………$
Intergovernmental……………………………………………………………
Fees and rentals………………………………………………………………
Investment income……………………………………………………………
Miscellaneous revenue………………………………………………………
TOTAL REVENUES……………………………………………
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
District administration……………………………………………………
Instructional support………………………………………………………
Preschool and special education………………………………………
Transportation services…………………………………………………
Athletics & student activities……………………………………………
Other school services……………………………………………………
Facilities……………………………………………………………………
Employee benefits and other fixed charges……………………………
Debt service:
Principal……………………………………………………………………
Interest……………………………………………………………………
TOTAL EXPENDITURES………………………………………
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES…………………………………………
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in……………………………………………………………………

22,270,797
26,457,675
-

Actual
Budgetary
Amounts

Final
Budget
$

22,270,797
26,457,675
-

$

22,270,797
26,103,796
10,006
54,285
126,520

Variance
to Final
Budget
$

(353,879)
10,006
54,285
126,520

48,728,472

48,728,472

48,565,404

(163,068)

1,878,398
22,215,892
8,585,434
3,168,290
329,259
1,794,459
3,471,140
8,375,559

1,793,843
22,181,319
8,693,192
3,168,290
330,107
1,804,981
3,471,140
8,375,559

1,275,484
22,129,001
8,656,935
2,390,464
316,266
1,918,638
3,378,240
8,391,244

518,359
52,318
36,257
777,826
13,841
(113,657)
92,900
(15,685)

150,000
37,638

150,000
37,638

150,000
37,638

-

50,006,069

50,006,069

48,643,910

1,362,159

(1,277,597)

(1,277,597)

180,217

(78,506)

180,217

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE……………………………………………

(1,097,380)

(1,097,380)

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR……………………..………

2,541,093

2,541,093

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR……………………………………… $

1,443,713

$

1,443,713

$

1,199,091

180,217

-

101,711

1,199,091

2,541,093

-

2,642,804

$

1,199,091

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Pension Plan Schedules
Pension Plan Schedules
The Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability presents multi-year trend information relating to
the District’s proportion of the net pension liability and related ratios.
The Schedule of the Contributions presents multi-year trend information on the District’s required and actual
contributions to the pension plan and related ratios.
The Schedule of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liability for the Massachusetts Teachers
Contributory Retirement System presents multi-year trend information on the liability and expense assumed by
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts on behalf of the District along with related ratios.
These schedules are intended to present information for ten years. Until a ten-year trend is compiled, information
is presented for those years for which information is available.
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SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
WORCESTER REGIONAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Year

Proportionate
share of the
net pension
liability (asset)

Proportion of
the net pension
liability (asset)

Net pension
liability as a
percentage of
coveredpayroll

Plan fiduciary
net position as
a percentage of
the total
pension liability

5,221,272

286.63%

47.36%

Coveredpayroll

December 31, 2019…………

1.68%

December 31, 2018…………

1.67%

15,122,534

5,007,211

302.02%

43.05%

December 31, 2017…………

1.67%

13,629,816

4,952,250

275.22%

46.40%

December 31, 2016…………

1.65%

13,842,943

5,100,711

271.39%

42.00%

December 31, 2015…………

1.66%

11,758,423

5,026,369

233.93%

44.52%

December 31, 2014…………

1.62%

9,610,022

4,833,047

198.84%

47.94%

$

14,965,953

$

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS
WORCESTER REGIONAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Year
June 30, 2020………………… $

Contributions in
relation to the
actuarially
determined
contribution

Actuarially
determined
contribution
1,023,723

$

Contribution
deficiency
(excess)

Coveredpayroll

(1,023,723) $

-

$

Contributions as
a percentage of
coveredpayroll

5,273,485

19.80%

June 30, 2019…………………

928,512

(928,512)

-

5,057,283

18.73%

June 30, 2018…………………

845,764

(845,764)

-

5,001,773

17.25%

June 30, 2017…………………

802,798

(802,798)

-

5,151,718

15.89%

June 30, 2016…………………

744,579

(744,579)

-

5,076,633

14.96%

June 30, 2015…………………

638,211

(638,211)

-

4,881,377

13.34%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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SCHEDULE OF THE SPECIAL FUNDING AMOUNTS
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS' RETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to
make all actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the member employers which
creates a special funding situation. Therefore, there is no net pension liability to recognize. This
schedule discloses the Commonwealth's 100% share of the associated collective net pension
liability; the portion of the collective pension expense as both a revenue and pension expense
recognized; and the Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total liability.

Year

Expense and
Revenue
Recognized for the
Commonwealth's
Support

Commonwealth's
100% Share of the
Associated Net
Pension Liability

2020…………………$
2019…………………
2018…………………
2017…………………
2016…………………
2015…………………

85,244,761
79,945,162
77,759,129
77,050,425
72,091,918
56,495,993

$

Plan Fiduciary Net
Position as a
Percentage of the
Total Liability

10,337,407
8,101,285
8,115,947
7,859,648
5,847,296
3,925,048

53.95%
54.84%
54.25%
52.73%
55.38%
61.64%

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which
information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Other Postemployment Benefit Plan Schedules

Other Postemployment Benefit Plan Schedules
The Schedule of Changes in the District’s Total Other Postemployment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios
presents multi-year trend information on changes in the Plan’s total OPEB liability.
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SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE
DISTRICT'S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

Measurement
Date
June 30,
2017
Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost………………………………………………… $
Interest…………………………………………………………
Changes of benefit terms……………………………………
Differences between expected and actual experience……
Changes of assumptions……………………………………
Benefit payments……………………………………………
Net change in total OPEB liability……………………………

679,501 $
912,876
(995,800)
596,577

Measurement
Date
June 30,
2018

Measurement
Date
June 30,
2019

654,820 $
915,968
(707,185)
(2,448,581)
(994,656)

635,665
1,011,933
(2,122,667)
(943,953)

(2,579,634)

(1,419,022)

Total OPEB liability - beginning……………………………..…

30,105,612

30,702,189

28,122,555

Total OPEB liability - ending……………………………………$

30,702,189 $

28,122,555 $

26,703,533

Covered-employee payroll………………………………..……

N/A

N/A

N/A

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll…………………………..…

N/A

N/A

N/A

Note: this schedule is intended to present information for 10 years.
Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for
which information is available.

See notes to required supplementary information.
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE A – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Notes to required supplementary information
A. Budgetary Information
The District adopts a balanced budget that is approved by the School Committee. The Superintendent of Schools
presents an annual budget to the School Committee, which includes estimates of revenues and other financing
sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. The School Committee, which has full
authority to amend and/or reject the budget or any appropriation category, adopts the expenditure budget by 2/3
vote. Increases in the budget subsequent to the approval of the annual budget require 2/3 Committee and
member town approval.
The majority of the District’s appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of the year.
The original 2020 approved budget for the General Fund authorized $50.0 million in appropriations. There was
no change between the original and final budget.
The District’s accounting office has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained in accordance
with the Appropriation Control Report and parameters for transfers as set by the School Committee.
B. Budgetary - GAAP Reconciliation
For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Municipal Accounting System basis of accounting
(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A
reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the year ended June 30, 2020, is
presented below:
Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis…………………………… $
Basis of accounting differences:
Recognition of revenue for on-behalf payments………………………
Recognition of expenditures for on-behalf payments…………………
Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis…………………………………$

101,711

10,337,407
(10,337,407)
101,711

NOTE B – PENSION PLAN
A. Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
The Schedule of the District Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability details the allocated percentage of
the net pension liability (asset), the proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the covered employee
payroll. It also demonstrates the net position as a percentage of the pension liability and the net pension liability
as a percentage of covered payroll.
B. Schedule of District’s Contributions
Governmental employers are required to pay an annual appropriation as established by PERAC. The
appropriation includes the amounts to pay the pension portion of each member’s retirement allowance, an amount
to amortize the actuarially determined unfunded liability to zero in accordance with the System’s funding
schedule, and additional appropriations in accordance with adopted early retirement incentive programs. The
appropriations are payable on July 1 and January 1. The District may choose to pay the entire appropriation in
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Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Year Ended June 30, 2020

July at a discounted rate. Accordingly, actual contributions may be less than the “total appropriation”. The
pension fund appropriation is allocated to the District based on covered payroll.
C. Schedule of the Special Funding Amounts of the Net Pension Liabilities
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts is a nonemployer contributor and is required by statute to make all
actuarially determined employer contributions on behalf of the member employers, which creates a special
funding situation. Since the District does not contribute directly to MTRS, there is no net pension liability to
recognize. This schedule discloses the Commonwealth's 100% share of the collective net pension liability that is
associated with the District; the portion of the collective pension expense as both a revenue and pension expense
recognized by the District; and the Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total liability.
D. Changes in Assumptions – The discount rate was reduced from 7.75% to 7.65%.
E. Changes in Plan Provisions – None.

NOTE C – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
The District administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (“The Retiree Health Plan”). The plan
provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the District’s group health
insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. Additionally, retired teachers and their spouses
receive health insurance through the Group Insurance Commission of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
(GIC).
The Other Postemployment Benefit Plan
A. The Schedule of Changes in the District’s Total Other Postemployment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios
The Schedule of Changes in the District’s Total Other Postemployment Benefit Liability and Related Ratios
presents multi-year trend information on changes in the Plan’s total OPEB liability.
B. Changes of Assumptions – None.
C. Changes in Provisions – None.
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DUDLEY-CHARLTON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT LETTER

JUNE 30, 2020

To the Honorable School Committee
Dudley-Charlton Regional School District
Dudley, Massachusetts 01571
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District (District) as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2020, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, we considered the District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
However, during our audit we became aware of other matters that we believe represent opportunities for
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompanies this letter
summarizes our comments and suggestions concerning those matters.
We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed
these comments and suggestions with various District personnel and will be pleased to discuss them in further
detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the
recommendations.
The District’s written responses to the matters identified in our audit have not been subjected to the audit
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management of the District and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

August 18, 2021

DUDLEY-CHARLTON REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT LETTER
JUNE 30, 2020
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INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER CASH
Internal Controls Over Cash
Current Year Comment
One of the most important internal controls over cash is the reconciliation process between the Treasurer’s book
balances and the bank balances. It is important to complete these reconciliations on a monthly basis so that any
potential errors or irregularities will be identified and resolved timely. While reviewing the bank reconciliations we
noted that they were completed on a monthly basis; however, the vendor and payroll accounts included some
significant unreconciled variances. These variances were subsequently reconciled by the Treasurer once we had
brought them to the attention of management.
We also noted that the District issues checks to transfer cash between the general fund bank account and the
health insurance trust fund bank account. This process requires the Treasurer to physically deposit the checks
after the warrant is processed. Not only is this an inefficient process, but it increases the risk of error or
irregularity. A more secure and efficient process would be to electronically transfer the cash between bank
accounts.
Recommendation
We recommend that procedures be implemented to ensure that the monthly bank reconciliations have identified
and resolved (if applicable) all reconciling items in order to reconcile the bank balances to the Treasurer’s book
balances.
We also recommend that the District discontinue the practice of issuing checks to transfer funds between bank
accounts and that transfers be performed electronically.
Management Response
The District is acutely aware of the need for this to be done in a timely manner. In light of the transition in the
Treasurer's office and unprecedented nature of the year due to the pandemic we are confident this will not be a
recurring issue.

FRAUD RISK ASSESSMENT
Fraud Risk Assessment
Prior Comment
The opportunity for errors or misappropriation of assets exists when there are inadequate controls to prevent or
detect these types of transactions. To address this risk, we recommend that the District perform a risk
assessment to identify, analyze, and manage risk of asset misappropriation. Risk assessment is a key element of
internal control that minimizes the possibility of misappropriation.
The risk assessment should be performed and documented by a management-level individual who has extensive
knowledge of the District. Ordinarily, the management-level individual would conduct interviews or lead group
discussion with personnel who have extensive knowledge of the District, its environment, and its processes. The
risk assessment process should consider the District’s vulnerability to misappropriation of assets.
Status – The District intends to hire an outside consultant to conduct this assessment for them. This comment
was expected to be resolved in FY2020; however, it was delayed due to the pandemic.
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FRAMEWORK FOR ASSESSING AND IMPROVING CYBERSECURITY
Framework for Assessing and Improving Cybersecurity
Prior Comment
Throughout an organization’s normal course of business comes the need to collect, transmit, and store extensive
amounts of personal and financial information, both in paper and electronic form, relating to residents, vendors
and employees. The use of technology has become a driver in helping organizations stay current and succeed.
However, the sharing and compilation of this information lends itself to increasing the organization’s vulnerability
to either a cyber computer attack, ransomware attack, or a security breach, all of which are considered
cybersecurity attacks.
We understand that management is aware of the risks associated with the collection of this information and is
diligent in implementing the proper policies and procedures to help to expose these risks. While impossible for an
organization to eliminate all risks associated with a cybersecurity attack, an organization can take a variety of
steps to mitigate its exposure, satisfy its governance responsibilities and help to minimize the impact of any attack
occur.
We recommended that the methods used by management to manage cyber security risk be documented,
similar to a disaster recovery plan.
Status – Documentation of the methods used by management to manage cyber security risk was delayed due to
the pandemic; however, this documentation was completed subsequent to year-end.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Honorable School Committee
Dudley-Charlton Regional School District
Dudley, Massachusetts 01571
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise DudleyCharlton Regional School District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
August 18, 2021.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Dudley-Charlton Regional
School District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School
District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Dudley-Charlton
Regional School District’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

August 18, 2021
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE
OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE
Report on compliance for each major federal program; report on internal control over compliance; and report on schedule of expenditures of federal awards required by the Uniform
Guidance

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Honorable School Committee
Dudley-Charlton Regional School District
Dudley, Massachusetts 01571
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each
of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. The
Dudley-Charlton Regional School District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School
District’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School
District’s compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Management of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
3

planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District’s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District’s internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by Uniform Guidance
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District, as of the year ended June 30, 2020,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Dudley-Charlton Regional
School District’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated August 18, 2021, which
contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of
forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

August 18, 2021
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Federal Grantor/Program Title

Federal
CFDA
Number

CHILD NUTIRTION CLUSTER:
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Passed through Massachusetts Department
of Elementary and Secondary Education:
Non-Cash Assistance (Commodities):
National School Lunch Program…………………………………… 10.555
Cash Assistance:
School Breakfast Program………………………………………… 10.553
COVID-19 School Breakfast………………………………………… 10.553
Total School Breakfast Program………………………………………………
Cash Assistance:
National School Lunch Program…………………………………… 10.555
COVID-19 School Lunch…………………………………………… 10.555
Total National School Lunch Program - Cash Assistance……

Pass - Through
entity Identifying
Number

14-054-1

Amount
Passed Through to
Sub-Recipients

$

Special Education Preschool Grants (IDEA, Preschool)…………

84.173

-

106,342
63,125
169,467

14-054-1
14-054-1

-

385,226
99,852
485,078

-

747,374

240-293973-2020-0658
240-095230-2019-0658

-

835,147
38,007
873,154

262-293974-2020-0658

-

31,585

-

904,739

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION CLUSTER……………………
PASS-THROUGH PROGRAMS:
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
Passed through Massachusetts Department of Elementary
and Secondary Education:
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies………………………
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies………………………
Total Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies……………

92,829

14-054-1
14-054-1

TOTAL CHILD NUTRITION CLUSTER…………………………
SPECIAL EDUCATION CLUSTER:
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
Passed through Massachusetts Department
of Elementary and Secondary Education:
Special Education Grants to States (IDEA, Part B)………………… 84.027
Special Education Grants to States (IDEA, Part B)………………… 84.027
Total Special Education Grants to States (IDEA, Part B)……

- $

Expenditures

84.010
84.010

305-293975-2020-0658
305-144219-2019-0658

-

330,465
39,503
369,968

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants……………………………

84.367

140-293972-2020-0658

-

50,215

Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program……………

84.424

309-293976-2020-0658

-

12,033

-

432,216

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION…………………
TOTAL…………………………………………………………………

$

- $

2,084,329

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2020

Note 1 – Basis of Presentation
Notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) includes the federal award activity of
the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District under programs of the federal government for the year ended June
30, 2020. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations
of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position,
changes in net position, or cash flows of the Dudley-Charlton Regional School District.
Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting and reporting policies of Dudley-Charlton Regional School District are set forth below:
(a) Basis of Presentation - The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented on
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, expenditures are recognized when the liability is
incurred. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
(b) School Lunch Program (Cash Assistance) - Program expenditures represent federal reimbursement for
meals provided during the fiscal year.
(c) School Lunch Program (Non-Cash Assistance) - Program expenditures represent the value of donated
foods received during the fiscal year.
(d) The District has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
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Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2020

A. Summary of Auditor’s Results
Schedule of findings and questioned costs
1. The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the basic financial statements of DudleyCharlton Regional School District.
2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.
3. No instances of noncompliance material to the basic financial statements of the Dudley-Charlton Regional
School District were disclosed during the audit.
4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in the
Report On Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; Report On Internal Control Over Compliance;
And Report On Schedule Of Expenditures Of Federal Awards Required By The Uniform Guidance.
5. The independent auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the DudleyCharlton Regional School District expresses an unmodified opinion.
6. There were no findings relative to the major federal award programs for the Dudley-Charlton Regional
School District.
7. The Special Education cluster was tested as a major program.
8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000.
9. The Dudley-Charlton Regional School District was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. Findings-Basic Financial Statements Audit
None

C. Findings and Questioned Costs-Major Federal Award Programs Audit
None

D. Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
None
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Report of the Assistant Superintendent for Teaching & Learning
Wednesday, October 13th

This past Friday, October 8th was a professional development opportunity for all staff
members, including Instructional Assistants. This half-day offering served a variety of priorities
and provided all staff members with timely and valuable information to help support student
growth and achievement.
As the adoption of the CKLA instructional materials is a central goal for our elementary
educators, Amplify, our vendor for CKLA, provided all staff that instruct reading with a two and
one-half hours strengthening session, designed to check our progress approximately five weeks
into the instructional cycle. Each grade level was brought together via videoconference to discuss
the status of implementation and work through any issues encountered during the onboarding
process. Prior to this session, a pre-session questionnaire was sent to all staff members as a
means of providing the most relevant support. These sessions are an invaluable asset to the
DCRSD. We will have Amplify return for an additional session on the January 26th PD day. This
session will be a full day offering and will be conducted in person. Our year will be dedicated to
a continuous cycle of feedback regarding CKLA implementation, with regular professional
development offerings and across the district communication.
Elementary UA teachers were provided with the opportunity to review skills, standards,
and goals for students, with an emphasis on determining the most essential skills required during
the transition from Grade 1 to Grade 2 and Grade 4 to Grade 5. In addition, a select group of
educators at the elementary level were provided with the opportunity to learn more about Project
Lead the Way (PLTW), a robust STEM offering already in place at the middle and secondary
level.
Educators in the Middle and Secondary level were afforded the opportunity to collaborate
with colleagues across the district, based either upon content or department. These teams were
able to develop goals and align instructional practices and curriculum. Our work will continue to
focus upon expansive practices; linking our outstanding educators across the district to align our
goals and expectations, making data driven decisions when instructing our students.
All district Instructional Assistants (IAs) met at Charlton Middle School for a
presentation and active workshop regarding disability awareness, presented by Courtney Galicia,
Gina Zelano, and Jennifer Grant. This workshop had participants experience the feelings and
experiences of students with disabilities through role playing and discussion. An essential
component of our professional development is to build the capacity of our organization using the
expertise of our current staff- something our providers did exceptionally well. I want to publicly
thank Ms. Galicia, Ms. Zelano, and Ms. Grant for their commitment to staff development.

Superintendent Self-Assessment
Name: Steven Lamarche

Author: Self-Evaluation

Job Title: 1200 - Superintendent

Date: Oct 8, 2021 10:40 AM EDT
School: District Office

Grade:
Share: Off

Standard I: Instructional Leadership.
The education leader promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by cultivating a shared vision
that makes powerful teaching and learning the central focus of schooling.

I-A-1. Standards-Based Unit Design
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Empowers administrators to
employ strategies that
empower staff to create
rigorous standards-based
units of instruction that are
aligned across grade levels
and content areas.
Continually monitors and
assesses progress, provides
feedback, and connects
administrators to additional
supports as needed. Is able to
model this element.

Provides support and
assistance for administrators
to learn and employ effective
strategies for ensuring that
educators and educator
teams design standardsbased units with measurable
outcomes and challenging
tasks requiring higher-order
thinking. Frequently monitors
and assesses progress,
providing feedback as
necessary.

Provides limited training
and/or support to
administrators to employ
effective strategies for
ensuring well-designed
standards-based units. May
sometimes monitor and
assess progress and provide
feedback.

Does not set the expectation
that administrators use
effective strategies for
ensuring development of welldesigned standards-based
units, provide adequate
resources or support for this
activity, and/or monitor or
assess progress.

I-A-2. Lesson Development Support
Exemplary
Supports administrators to
collaborate on developing
strategies that enable
educators to consistently
develop series of
interconnected, wellstructured lessons with
challenging objectives and
appropriate student
engagement strategies,
pacing, sequence, materials,
and grouping and identifies
specific exemplars and
resources in each area. Is
able to model this element.

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Supports administrators to
learn and establish effective
strategies for ensuring that
educators develop wellstructured lessons with
challenging, measurable
objectives and appropriate
student engagement
strategies, pacing, sequence,
activities, materials,
technologies, and grouping.

Provides limited training to
administrators on how to
establish effective strategies
for ensuring that educators
develop well-structured
lessons and/or does not
consistently identify and/or
address patterns when there
is evidence of a weak strategy
being employed.

Does not state expectations
for administrators that they
establish effective strategies
to ensure development of
well-structured lessons, does
not provide training or
support, and/or does not
discriminate between strong
and weak strategies for
ensuring effective lessonplanning practices.

I-B-1. Instructional Practices
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

While observing principal
practice and artifacts, ensures
that principals know and
employ effective strategies
and practices for helping
educators improve
instructional practice. Is able
to model this element

While observing principal
practice and artifacts, ensures
that principals identify a
variety of effective teaching
strategies and practices when
they observe practice and
review unit plans.

While the superintendent may
observe principal practice and
artifacts, s/he only
occasionally looks for
evidence that principals are
identifying effective teaching
strategies and practices when
they observe practice and
review unit plans.

Does not look for evidence of
and/or cannot accurately
identify ways that principals
identify effective teaching
strategies when the principals
observe practice and review
unit plans..
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I-B-2. Quality of Effort and Work
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Sets and models high
expectations for the quality of
content, student effort, and
student work district-wide and
empowers administrators,
educators and students to
uphold these expectations
consistently. Is able to model
this element.

Sets and models high
expectations for the quality of
content, student effort, and
student work district-wide and
supports administrators to
uphold these expectations
consistently.

May set high expectations for
the quality of content, student
effort, and student work
district-wide, but allows
expectations to be
inconsistently applied across
the district.

Does not set high
expectations for the quality of
content, student effort, and/or
student work district-wide, or
expectations are
inappropriate.

I-B-3. Diverse Learners' Needs
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Employs strategies that
ensure that principals know
and consistently identify
teaching strategies and
practices that are meeting the
needs of diverse learners
while teaching their content.
Is able to model this element.

While observing principal
practice, ensures that
principals look for and identify
a variety of teaching
strategies and practices that
are effective with diverse
learners when they observe
practices and review unit
plans.

While the superintendent may
observe principal practice,
s/he only occasionally looks
for evidence that principals
are identifying effective
teaching strategies and
practices that are appropriate
for diverse learners when they
observe practices and review
unit plans.

Does not look for evidence of
and/or cannot accurately
identify ways that principals
identify effective teaching
strategies and practices that
are appropriate for diverse
learners.

I-C-1. Variety of Assessments
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Leads administrator teams to
develop and implement a
comprehensive assessment
strategy that includes ongoing
informal assessment and
common interim assessments
that are aligned across grade
levels and subject areas. Is
able to model this element.

Supports administrator teams
to use a variety of formal and
informal methods and
assessments, including
common interim assessments
that are aligned across grade
levels and subject areas.

Provides administrators with
some formal assessment
options and suggests that
they coordinate their
assessment practices within
their teams and include a
variety of assessments but
does not monitor this practice.

Does not communicate or
monitor a strategy for
assessments, leaving it up to
administrators to design and
implement their own
strategies.

Unsatisfactory

I-C-2. Adjustment to Practice
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Leads, plans, facilitates, and
supports administrator team
review meetings after each
round of assessments.
Monitors teams' plans,
adjustments to instruction,
and outcomes and shares
lessons learned with others. Is
able to model this element.

Provides the resources for
planning time and effective
support for administrator
teams to review assessment
data and identify appropriate
interventions and adjustments
to practice. Monitors
administrators' efforts and
successes in this area.

Suggests that administrator
teams meet to review data
and plan for adjustments and
interventions but
inconsistently monitors this
practice.

Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Supports administrators and
administrator teams to
develop and attain
meaningful, actionable, and
measurable professional
practice, student learning and
district/school improvement
goals and models this process
through the superintendent's
own evaluation process and
goals. Is able to model this
element.

Supports administrators and
administrator teams to
develop and attain
meaningful, actionable, and
measurable professional
practice, student learning, and
where appropriate,
district/school improvement
goals.

Supports administrators and
administrator teams to
develop professional practice,
student learning and, where
appropriate, district/school
improvement goals but does
not consistently review them
for quality and/or monitor
progress.

Does not support
administrators to develop
professional practice, student
learning and/or district/school
improvement goals, review
the goals for quality, and/or
support administrators in
attaining goals.

Does not encourage or
facilitate administrator teams
to review assessment data.

I-D-1. Educator Goals
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I-D-2. Observations and Feedback
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Makes unannounced visits to
schools throughout the year to
observe administrator practice
and provides targeted
constructive feedback to all
administrators. Engages with
all in conversations with all
administrators about
improvement, celebrates
effective practice, and
provides targeted support to
administrators whose practice
is less than Proficient. Is able
to model this element.

Typically makes at least three
unannounced visits to each
school to observe principal
practice every year and
provides targeted constructive
feedback to all administrators.
Acknowledges effective
practice and provides
redirection and support for
those whose practice is less
than Proficient.

Makes infrequent
unannounced visits to schools
to observe principal practice,
rarely provides feedback that
is specific and constructive for
administrators, and/or
critiques struggling
administrators without
providing support to improve
their performance.

Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Exercises sound and reliable
judgment in assigning ratings
for performance, goal
attainment, and impact on
student learning. Ensures that
administrators understand in
detail why they received their
ratings and provides effective
support around this practice Is
able to model this element.

Exercises sound and reliable
judgment in assigning ratings
for performance, goal
attainment, and impact on
student learning and ensures
that administrators understand
why they received their
ratings.

Assigns ratings for
performance, goal attainment,
and impact on student
learning in a way that is not
consistently transparent to
administrators.

Assigns ratings for
performance, goal attainment,
and impact on student
learning without collecting and
analyzing sufficient and/or
appropriate data or does not
assign ratings for some
administrators.

Rarely conducts visits to
observe principal practice
and/or does not provide
honest feedback to
administrators who are not
performing proficiently.

I-D-3. Ratings

I-D-4. Alignment Review
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Studies alignment between
judgment about practice and
data about student learning
when evaluating and rating
administrators and provides
effective support around this
practice. Is able to model this
element.

Consistently reviews
alignment between judgment
about practice and student
learning data and provides
guidance to administrators to
make informed decisions
about educator support and
evaluation based upon this
review.

Occasionally reviews
alignment between judgment
about practice and student
learning data.

Unsatisfactory
Does not review alignment
between judgment about
practice and data about
student learning when
evaluating and rating
administrators.

I-E-1. Knowledge and Use of Data
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Leads administrator teams to
identify a range of appropriate
data sources, including nontraditional information that
offers a unique perspective on
school and district
performance, and models
effective data analysis for
staff. Is able to model this
element.

Guides administrators and
supports them in identifying a
range of appropriate data
sources and effectively
analyze the data for decisionmaking purposes.

May work with administrators
to identify multiple sources of
student learning data, but
these data do not provide
multiple perspectives on
performance, and/or analysis
of the data is sometimes
inaccurate.

Relies on too few data
sources to represent the full
picture of school or district
performance, and/or does not
analyze the data accurately.
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I-E-2. School and District Goals
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Involves stakeholders in a
comprehensive diagnosis of
school and district strengths
and weaknesses using
appropriate data, and leads a
collaborative process to
develop a focused, resultsoriented strategic plan with
annual goals. Is able to model
this element.

Uses data to accurately
assess school and district
strengths and areas for
improvement to inform the
creation of focused,
measurable district goals.
Provides support to principals
in their efforts to create
focused, measurable school
goals.

Assesses school and district
strengths and weaknesses
using data that are not
carefully analyzed and/or
writes an unfocused strategic
plan.

Gathers limited information on
school and district strengths
and weaknesses and/or does
not use these data to inform
district plans or actions.

I-E-3. Improvement of Performance, Effectiveness, and Learning
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Uses multiple data sources to
evaluate administrator and
district performance. Provides
administrators and
administrator teams with the
resources and support to
disaggregate assessment
data and assists them in
identifying students who need
additional support. Empowers
educators to use a range of
data sources to pinpoint areas
for their own and schoolwide
improvement. Is able to model
this element.

Uses multiple data sources to
evaluate administrator and
district performance. Provides
administrators and
administrator teams with the
resources and support to
disaggregate assessment
data and assists them in
identifying students who need
additional support.

Shares limited data with
administrators to identify
student and/or educator
subgroups that need support;
provides limited assistance to
administrator teams in using
data to improve performance.

Does not share assessment
data with administrators or
provide them with resources
and support to use data to
make adjustments to school
or district plans, and/or model
appropriate data analysis
strategies.

Standard I: Instructional Leadership - EVIDENCE
Please indicate evidence supporting ratings for this section. Include evidence for all ratings of "Needs Improvement" and
"Unsatisfactory".

Standard II: Management and Operations.
Promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff by ensuring a safe, efficient, and effective learning
environment, using resources to implement appropriate curriculum, staffing, and scheduling

II-A-1. Plans, Procedures, and Routines
Exemplary
Establishes systems, plans,
procedures, and routines that
empower administrators,
students and staff to
implement orderly and
efficient student entry,
dismissal, meals, class
transitions, assemblies, and
recess. Is able to model this
element.

Proficient
Develops systems, plans,
procedures, and routines for
administrators to implement
that generally ensure orderly
and efficient student entry,
dismissal, meals, class
transitions, assemblies, and
recess.

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

May establish plans,
procedures, and routines to
guide administrators, but
student entry, dismissal,
meals, class transitions,
assemblies, and recess are
not consistently orderly and/or
efficient.

Does not organize the district
effectively for orderly and
efficient movement of
students.

II-A-2. Operational Systems
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Develops systems and
procedures for the effective
supervision and support of
custodial, clerical, food
services, and other staff
effectively so that the campus
is clean, attractive,
welcoming, and safe.

Develops systems and
procedures for the effective
supervision and support of
custodial, clerical, food
services, and other staff
effectively so that the campus
is clean, attractive,
welcoming, and safe.

Develops systems and
procedures that result in
inconsistent supervision
and/or support of custodial
and other staff, resulting in a
campus that is not
consistently clean, attractive,
welcoming, or safe.

Fails to establish systems and
procedures to support
custodial and/or other staff, so
that the campus is not
generally clean, attractive,
welcoming, and/or safe.
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II-A-3. Student Safety, Health, and Social and Emotional Needs
Exemplary
Guides administrators and
teams to develop practices
that consistently showcase
high expectations for student
behavior and invest staff and
students in upholding these
expectations. Successfully
implements district-wide
routines and consequences
such that students take
ownership over addressing
bullying and other behaviors
that threaten students' social
and emotional well-being. Is
able to model this element.

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Supports administrator teams
in developing systems and
procedures for positive
student behavior; models high
expectations for student
behavior and provides
appropriate training for
administrators to uphold these
expectations. Establishes
district-wide routines and
consequences, including
policies and systems to
prevent and address bullying
and other behaviors that
threaten students' social and
emotional well-being.

May urge administrators to
demand good student
behavior but allows varying
standards to exist in different
schools. Supervises and
supports administrators in
addressing student discipline
and bullying matters on a
case-by-case basis in the
absence of a system of
procedures and
consequences.

Does not develop consistent
procedures for student
discipline; district disciplinary
practice varies from school to
school; often tolerates
discipline violations and/or
enforces district policies or
procedures inconsistently.

II-B-1. Recruitment and Hiring Strategies
Exemplary
Consistently identifies
effective administrators and
educators who share the
district's mission. Empowers
administrators and faculty
members to share in a
structured, consistent
interview process. Is able to
model this element.

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Leads the district's
recruitment and hiring process
and, through it, consistently
identifies effective
administrators and educators
who share the district's
mission.

Leads the recruitment and
hiring process but does not
consistently identify effective
administrators and educators.

Does not successfully lead the
recruitment and hiring
process.

II-B-2. Induction, Professional Development, and Career Growth Strategies
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Facilitates the administratorled design and
implementation of induction
support, job-embedded
professional development,
and career growth support all
of which are aligned with
district goals; are consistently
viewed by professional
personnel as effective and
helpful, and provide multiple
opportunities for administrator
and educator growth and
learning. Leads the
administrator team in
developing district criteria for
the awarding of professional
status. Is able to model this
element.

Develops district-wide
induction support for new
administrators and teachers
and/or faithfully implements
the district's induction
strategy; organizes highquality job-embedded
professional development
aligned with district goals; and
supports the career growth of
effective professional
personnel by distributing
leadership tasks, developing
criteria for the awarding of
professional status, and
monitoring progress and
development.

Develops only a limited
district-wide induction
program for new
administrators and teachers
and/or inconsistently
implements the district's
induction strategy; organizes
job-embedded professional
development that is not
consistently high quality or
aligned with goals; and/or
does not consistently support
effective administrators' and
educators' career growth.
Does not establish criteria for
the awarding of professional
status.

Does not support new
administrators, provide
guidance to them to support
educators, organize highquality job-embedded
professional development,
and/or support the career
growth of effective educators.

II-C-1. Time for Teaching and Learning
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Empowers administrators and
teams to contribute to the
design and monitoring of
district systems that maximize
instructional time and
minimize disruptions and
distractions for all school-level
staff. Is able to model this
element.

Creates schedules,
procedures and related
systems that maximize
instructional time and
minimize school day
disruptions and distractions
for school-level staff, including
principals; and consistently
monitors the extent to which
these systems are effective

Generally acts to minimize
disruptions to instructional
time and minimize disruptions
and distractions for schoollevel staff, including
principals.

Does little to minimize
disruptions to instructional
time and minimize disruptions
and distractions for schoollevel staff, including principals.
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II-C-2. Time for Collaboration
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Is transparent and
forthcoming about
expectations for all
administrator team meetings;
creates and implements a
schedule that maximizes
meeting time for all team
members. Collaborates with
team members to develop
team norms. Is able to model
this element.

Sets expectations for
administrator team meetings
and creates a schedule that
provides sufficient meeting
time for all team meetings.
Prevents or deflects activities
that interfere with
administrators' ability to focus
on the agenda during team
time. Establishes norms for
effective team behavior.

Sets inconsistent expectations
for administrator team
meetings and/or creates a
schedule that only provides
adequate meeting time for
some team meetings. Works
to prevent or deflect activities
with limited success. Norms
for team behavior are unclear
and/or not consistently
practiced.

Sets unrealistic expectations
for administrator team
meetings if at all and/or does
not create a schedule that
provides adequate meeting
time for teams. Does not work
to prevent or deflect timewasting activities. Does not
establish norms for the
administrator team meetings.

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

II-D-1. Laws and Policies
Exemplary
Provides the resources and
support for all school
personnel to understand and
comply with state and federal
laws and mandates, school
committee policies, and
collective bargaining
agreements. Is able to model
this element.

Understands and complies
with state and federal laws
and mandates, school
committee policies, and
collective bargaining
agreements. Provides the
resources and support to
ensure district-wide
compliance.

May know state and federal
laws and mandates, school
committee policies, and
collective bargaining
agreements, but
inconsistently complies with
some laws or policies.

Demonstrates lack of
awareness or consistent noncompliance with some or all
state and federal laws and
mandates, school committee
policies, or collective
bargaining agreements.

II-D-2. Ethical Behavior
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Reliably demonstrates sound
judgment reflecting integrity
and fairness; protects
administrator, student, family,
and staff confidentiality
appropriately. Effectively
supports all staff to do both as
well. Is able to model this
element.

Reliably demonstrates sound
judgment reflecting integrity
and fairness; protects
administrator, student, family,
and staff confidentiality
appropriately; and expects all
district personnel to reflect this
practice.

Generally demonstrates
sound judgment reflecting
integrity and fairness with
occasional lapses in judgment
and/or does not always
protect administrator, student,
family, and staff confidentiality
appropriately.

Demonstrates lack of sound
judgment reflecting integrity
and fairness and/or does not
adequately protect
administrator, student, family,
and/or staff confidentiality.

Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Leads the administrator team
to develop a district budget
that aligns with the district's
vision, mission, and goals with
supporting rationale; uses
budget limitations to create
new opportunities for
improvement, when possible;
allocates and manages
expenditures consistent with
district/school-level goals; and
seeks alternate funding
sources as needed. Is able to
model this element.

Develops a budget that aligns
with the district's vision,
mission, and goals. Allocates
and manages expenditures
consistent with district/schoollevel goals and available
resources.

II-E-1. Fiscal Systems
Develops a budget that
loosely aligns with the
district's vision, mission, and
goals or inconsistently
manages expenditures and
available resources.

Builds a budget that does not
align with the district's goals
or mismanages available
resources.

Standard II: Management and Operations - EVIDENCE
Please indicate evidence supporting ratings for this section. Include evidence for all ratings of "Needs Improvement" and
"Unsatisfactory".

Standard III: Family and Community Engagement.
Promotes the learning and growth of all students and the success of all staff through effective partnerships with families,
community organizations, and other stakeholders that support the mission of the school and district.
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III-A-1. Family Engagement
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Provides resources and
support for all personnel to
use culturally sensitive
practices and successfully
engages most families,
ensuring that all families are
welcome and can contribute
to district, classroom, school,
and community effectiveness.
Works with administrators,
families, and organizations to
identify and remove barriers to
family involvement, including
families whose home
language is not English. Is
able to model this element.

Provides resources and
support for all personnel to
use culturally sensitive
practices to ensure that all
families are welcome and can
contribute to the district,
classroom, school and
community's effectiveness.
Works with administrators to
identify and remove barriers to
families' involvement,
including families whose
home language is not English.

May provide some resources
and support and make some
attempts to welcome families
as members of the district,
classroom and school
community but does not
consistently use culturally
sensitive practices and/or
work to identify and remove
barriers to family involvement.

Does little to welcome families
as members of the district,
classroom or school
community or tolerates an
environment that is
unwelcoming to some
families.

III-A-2. Community and Business Engagement
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Establishes strategic
partnerships with community
organizations, community
members, and businesses
that improve district
effectiveness. Works to
increase the types and
number of organizations with
whom the district partners in
order to deepen relationships
and increase partner
contribution. Is able to model
this element.

Establishes ongoing
relationships with community
organizations, community
members, and businesses.
Engages them to increase
their involvement to maximize
community contributions for
district effectiveness.

Engages some community
organizations, community
members, and/or businesses
in annual district events but
does not make efforts to
increase their involvement to
maximize community
contributions for district
effectiveness.

Limits work to the immediate
context of the schools. Does
not make efforts to reach out
to community organizations,
community members, or
businesses that could
otherwise contribute to district
effectiveness.

Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Provides resources and
support to enable
administrators and educators
to identify each student's
academic, social, emotional,
and behavioral needs,
including students with
disabilities and English
learners. Collaborates with
administrators to support
families to effectively address
student needs and prevent
further challenges, connecting
students with a network of
resources within and outside
the district. Is able to model
this element.

Provides resources and
support to enable
administrators and educators
to identify each student's
academic, social, emotional,
and behavioral needs,
including students with
disabilities and English
learners. Collaborates with
administrators to support
families to address student
needs, utilizing resources
within and outside of the
district.

Asks administrators to identify
students struggling
academically or behaviorally
and/or work with a limited
number of families to address
student needs, utilizing a
limited set of resources.

III-B-1. Student Support
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Does not work with
administrators to support
educators to identify student
needs, does not work with
administrators to support
families to address student
needs, and/or does not draw
upon internal or external
resources.
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III-B-2. Family Collaboration
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Sets clear expectations and
provides differentiated
resources to support
administrators to consistently
and regularly engage all
families in supporting their
children's learning at school
and home, including families
and children with limited
English proficiency and/or
children with disabilities. Is
able to model this element.

Sets clear expectations for
and supports administrators to
regularly engage families in
supporting learning at school
and home, including
appropriate adaptation for
students with disabilities or
limited English proficiency.

Sets general expectations
and provides occasional
support for administrators to
engage families in supporting
their children's learning at
school and at home and/or
supporting their children with
disabilities or limited English
proficiency.

Unsatisfactory
Does not set clear
expectations or provide
support for administrators to
regularly communicate with
families on ways to support
their children's learning at
home and at school.

III-C-1. Two-Way Communication
Exemplary
Sets clear expectations for
and provides differentiated
support to ensure that all
administrators design and
implement frequent
personalized
communications, respond
carefully and promptly to
communications from
families, and solicit feedback
from families that informs
improvement to
communication plans. Is able
to model this element.

Proficient
Sets clear expectations for
and provides support to
administrators to
communicate regularly with
families using two-way
communication channels,
including careful and prompt
response to communications
from families. Supports
administrators to maximize
the number of face-to-face
family/teacher interactions.

Needs Improvement
May set expectations for and
provide limited support to
administrators to
communicate with families but
does not stress the
importance of two-way
communication channels.
District communication
regarding student learning
and performance primarily
occurs through school
newsletters and other oneway media.

Unsatisfactory
Does not set clear
expectations for or provide
support to administrators to
communicate with families.
District communication
regarding student learning
and performance primarily
occurs through school report
cards.

III-C-2. Culturally Proficient Communication
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Sets clear expectations for,
models, and provides
differentiated support
regarding culturally sensitive
communication. Ensures that
district-wide communication
with families is always
respectful and demonstrates
understanding and
appreciation of different
families' home language,
culture, and values. Is able to
model this element.

Sets clear expectations for
and provides support to
administrators regarding
culturally sensitive
communication. Ensures that
district-wide communication
with families is always
respectful and demonstrates
understanding of and
sensitivity to different families'
home language, culture, and
values.

May set expectations for
administrators regarding
culturally sensitive
communication but does not
provide support to them;
and/or occasionally
communicates in ways that
are culturally insensitive to
some families' home
language, culture, and values.

Does not set clear
expectations for or provide
support to administrators
regarding culturally sensitive
communication and/or allows
inappropriate disrespectful
communication with families
that ignores different family
cultural norms.

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

III-D-1. Family Concerns
Exemplary
Provides system and support
for all school personnel to
reach out to families
proactively, as soon as
concerns arise. Effectively
reaches equitable solutions
that satisfy families, faculty,
and staff and are in the best
interest of students. Is able to
model this element.

Provides systems, and
support for administrators to
reach out to families as
concerns arise and works to
reach equitable solutions in
the best interest of students.

May systems and support to
address concerns with
families as they arise, but
agreed-upon solutions are not
always in the best interest of
students.

Fails to provide systems and
support for personnel to
consistently reach out to
families in response to
concerns, and agreed-upon
solutions are often not in the
best interest of students.

Standard III: Family and Community Engagement - EVIDENCE
Please indicate evidence supporting ratings for this section. Include evidence for all ratings of "Needs Improvement" and
"Unsatisfactory".
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Standard IV: Professional Culture.
Promotes success for all students by nurturing and sustaining a school culture of reflective practice, high expectations, and
continuous learning for staff.

IV-A-1. Commitment to High Standards
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Leads administrators in
developing a shared
commitment to high standards
of teaching and learning with
high expectations for
achievement for all. Revisits
and renews commitment with
administrator team regularly.
Is able to model this element.

Fosters a shared commitment
to high standards of teaching
and learning, for all
administrators, with high
expectations for achievement
for all.

May ask administrators for
commitment to high standards
of teaching and learning with
high expectations for
achievement for all but does
not support and/or model it.

Unsatisfactory
Does not encourage high
standards of teaching and
learning or high expectations
for achievement with the
administrator team, and/or
may demonstrate low
expectations for faculty and
staff.

IV-A-2. Mission and Core Values
Exemplary
Leads administrators to
develop core values and
mission statements, share
these statements with families
and the school district
community, and use them to
guide decision making. Is able
to model this element.

Proficient
Develops, promotes, and
models commitment to core
values that guide the
development of a succinct,
results-oriented mission
statement and ongoing
decision making.

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

May develop core values and
mission statements but rarely
uses them to guide decision
making.

Does not develop core values
and mission statements for
the school.

IV-A-3. Meetings
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Plans and facilitates engaging
administrator team meetings
in which small groups of
administrators learn together
and create solutions to
instructional leadership
issues. Team has established
norms for behavior and
consistently adheres to them.
Consistently evaluates the
effectiveness of the
administrator team meetings.
Is able to model this element.

Plans and leads well-run and
engaging administrator
meetings that have clear
purpose, focus on matters of
consequence, and engage
participants in a thoughtful
and productive series of
conversations and
deliberations. Establishes
clear norms for administrator
team behavior.

May lead administrator
meetings that include both
one-way informational
updates and participatory
activities focused on matters
of consequence, but does not
clearly establish norms.

Leads administrator meetings
that lack clear purpose and/or
are primarily used for one-way
informational updates.

IV-B-1. Policies and Practices
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Leads stakeholders to
develop and implement
culturally sensitive policies
that acknowledge the diverse
backgrounds, identities,
strengths, and challenges of
administrators, students and
staff. Empowers
administrators with time,
resources, and support to
build cultural proficiency and
collaborates with community
members to create a culture
that affirms individual
differences. Is able to model
this element.

Develops and implements
culturally sensitive policies
that acknowledge the diverse
backgrounds, identities,
strengths, and challenges of
administrators, students and
staff. Provides administrators
with relevant resources to
support them in building
cultural proficiency and
promotes a culture that affirms
individual differences.

Takes pride in having a
diverse administration, faculty
and/or student body, but
some policies are not
culturally sensitive; and/or
provides limited resources for
administrators to support the
development of cultural
proficiency.

Develops and implements
culturally insensitive or
inappropriate policies, does
not support administrators and
staff in building cultural
proficiency, and/or creates a
culture that minimizes the
importance of individual
differences.
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IV-C-1. Communication Skills
Exemplary

Proficient

Demonstrates strong context- Demonstrates strong
and audience-specific
interpersonal, written, and
interpersonal, written, and
verbal communication skills.
verbal communication skills. Is
able to model this element.

Needs Improvement
May demonstrate adequate
interpersonal, written, and
verbal communication skills
but sometimes makes
grammatical errors or has
difficulty expressing ideas to
stakeholders.

Unsatisfactory
Demonstrates ineffectual
interpersonal, written, or
verbal communication skills at
times.

IV-D-1. Continuous Learning of Staff
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Models for administrators how
to reflect on the effectiveness
of interactions with faculty and
students and uses data,
research, and best practices
to adapt practice to achieve
improved results. Supports all
educators to work in teams as
often as is feasible and
appropriate. Is able to model
this element.

Leads all administrators and
teams to reflect on the
effectiveness of interactions
with faculty and students.
Ensures that administrators
use data, research, and best
practices to adapt practice to
achieve improved results.

May encourage
administrators to reflect on
the effectiveness of
interactions with faculty and
students and to use data and
best practices to adapt
practice but does not support
administrators in these
practices.

Accepts the practice of
administrators working largely
in isolation, without
consideration of data and best
practices, and/or discourages
reflection among
administrators, faculty and
staff.

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

IV-D-2. Continuous Learning of Administrator
Exemplary
Demonstrates openness and
commitment to learning;
reflects on personal practice;
and relies on student data,
current research, and best
practice to improve own
leadership. Is able to model
this element.

Proficient
Reflects on and improves
personal practice, sets
meaningful goals, and
develops new approaches in
order to improve efficiency
and practice.

Occasionally reflects on
personal practice, sets
meaningful goals, and/or
researches ways to improve
efficiency and practice.

Does not reflect on personal
practice or demonstrate new
ways of thinking about
administration and leadership.

IV-E-1. Shared Vision Development
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

Leads administrators, staff,
students of all ages, families,
and community members to
develop and internalize a
shared educational vision
around preparation for college
and careers and responsible
citizenship. Is able to model
this element.

At all grade levels,
continuously engages
administrators, staff, students,
families, and community
members in developing a
vision focused on student
preparation for college and
career readiness, civic
engagement, and community
contributions.

Engages administrators, staff,
students, families, and
community members in
developing a vision focused
on some aspects of student
preparation for college and
career readiness, civic
engagement, and community
contributions.

Does little to engage
stakeholders in the creation of
a shared educational vision,
or the vision is disconnected
from college and career
readiness, civic engagement,
and/or community
contributions.

Unsatisfactory

IV-F-1. Response to Disagreement
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Models a variety of strategies
for responding respectfully
and effectively to
disagreement and dissent,
using both as opportunities for
learning. Provides
professional development for
the administrator team to
build these conflict resolution
strategies. Is able to model
this element.

Employs a nonconfrontational approach for
responding respectfully and
appropriately to disagreement
and dissent, using both as
opportunities for learning.
Models this practice for the
administrator team.

May respond respectfully to
disagreement and dissent, but
responds inconsistently and
does not always employ a
non-confrontational approach
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10

IV-F-2. Conflict Resolution
Exemplary

Proficient

Consistently employs a variety
of strategies to resolve
conflicts in a constructive and
respectful manner and
empowers and supports
administrators to use these
approaches. Is able to model
this element.

Consistently employs a variety
of strategies to resolve
conflicts in a constructive and
respectful manner. Models
this behavior for the
administrator team.

Needs Improvement

Unsatisfactory

May attempt to respectfully
Does not address conflicts in
resolve conflicts as they arise, a solution-oriented and/or
but employs only a limited
respectful manner.
range of strategies.

IV-F-3. Consensus Building
Exemplary

Proficient

Needs Improvement

Employs a variety of
strategies to build consensus
within the school district
community around critical
school decisions, while
encouraging dialogue and
different points of view. Is able
to model this element.

Builds consensus within the
school district community
around critical school
decisions, employing a variety
of strategies.

Employs a limited number of
strategies to build consensus
within the school district
community, with varying
degrees of success.

Unsatisfactory
Does not attempt to build
consensus within the district
community, or attempts at
consensus-building around
critical school decisions are
unsuccessful.

Standard IV: Professional Culture - EVIDENCE
Please indicate evidence supporting ratings for this section. Include evidence for all ratings of "Needs Improvement" and
"Unsatisfactory".
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